
Page 1 of 3 
 

   

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 14, 2015  
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION 
 

15C‐0459. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

15C‐0460.  Roll Call 

15C‐0461.  Establishment of Quorum 
15C‐0462.  Pledge of Allegiance 
15C‐0463.  Reports of Standing Committees 
15C‐0464.  Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

 No testimony on zoning items where a public hearing has been conducted 

 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA15‐22 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0465. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of November 
23, 2015 

4‐9  

 
15C‐0466. 

  
Approval of  Emergency Snow Removal Contract with Louie’s Trenching 
Service 

10  

 
15C‐0467. 

 
Approval of a Request by the Galena Lion’s Club to Conduct Oktoberfest in 
Depot Park on Saturday, October 1, 2016 

11 

 
15C‐0468. 

 
Approval of Request by the Galena Area Chamber of Commerce to Conduct 
the Halloween Parade in the Downtown on Saturday, October 29, 2016  

12 

 
15C‐0469. 

 
Acceptance of October 2015 Financial Report 

‐‐ 

Page 1 of 73



Page 2 of 3 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0470. 
 
Approval of Donation from Top Notch Plumbing, Heating and Electrical of a 
Heating System for the Fire Training Storage Building 

13 

 
15C‐0471. 

 
Approval of Bridge Inspection Contract with IIW Engineers and Surveyors 

14 

 
15C‐0472. 

 
Approval of Controlled Burn at Gateway Park for Forest Restoration Project 

15 

 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0449. 
 
Second Reading and Possible Approval of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 
110.39 “Street Performers” of the Galena Code of Ordinances   

 
16‐26 

 
15C‐0450. 

 
Second Reading and Possible Approval of an Ordinance Establishing the 
Amount of Property Taxes to be Levied in 2015 and Collected in 2016  

 
27‐38 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0473. 
 

Discussion and Possible Action on a Resolution Providing for the Submission 
to the Voters of the City of Galena an Advisory Question Regarding Deer 
Population Management in the City of Galena 

 
39‐43 

 
15C‐0474. 

  
First Reading of an Ordinance to Accept Ownership by Dedication of the 
Public Streets, Sanitary Sewer System, Water Distribution System, And Storm 
Water System in the Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision in the City of Galena 

 
44‐50 

 
15C‐0475. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on Revisions to the Historic Preservation 
Ordinance 

 
51‐63 

 
15C‐0476. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Donor Funded Park Identification Sign in 
Cemetery Park 

 
64 

 
15C‐0477. 

 
Warrants  

65‐73 

 
15C‐0478. 

 
Alderpersons’ Comments 

 

Page 2 of 73



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. January 13  6:30 P.M. City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Deer Committee   Wed. December 16   6:30 P.M. City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Unified Destination Marketing Comm.  Tues. January 5  7:00 P.M. City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Turner Hall Committee  Thurs. January 7  8:30 A.M. City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Historic Preservation Comm.  Thurs. January 7  6:30 P.M. City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. December 28  6:30 P.M. City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 
Posted: Thursday, December 10, 2015 at 3:30 p.m.    Posted By:   

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

15C‐0479. 
 
City Administrator’s Report  

 

 
15C‐0480. 

 
Mayor’s Report 

 

 
15C‐0481. 

 
Motion for Executive Session, Including: 
 

 Section 2 (c) (6) – Sale or lease of public property.  
 

 Section 2 (c) (11) – Pending, probable or imminent litigation.  
 

 Section 2 (c) (21) Review of Executive Session Minutes 

 

 
15C‐0482. 

 
Adjournment 

 

Page 3 of 73



Regular Board Meeting  23 November 2015 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 23 NOVEMBER 2015 
 
 

15C-0437 – CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Lincoln called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 
101 Green Street on 23 November 2015.  
 
15C-0438– ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Lincoln, and 
Westemeier 
 
Absent:  Renner 
 
15C-0439– ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Lincoln announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City 
business.   
 
15C-0440 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
15C-0441 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
None.     
 
15C-0442 – PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Kathy Gereau, 219 S. High Street – Gereau voiced concern with the proposed changes to the 
Street Performers Ordinance.  Gereau feels to restrict a performer to perform at a single public 
location for a maximum of four hours per day would be difficult to regulate and an unnecessary 
restriction.  The limitation on the hours for performing is included in the current ordinances (10 am 
to 8 pm) and mirrors those from other municipalities, including Chicago.  Requiring a four-hour 
limit is unreasonable as it would disrupt each performer, jeopardize one’s ability to continue to 
perform and most significantly, adversely impact our tourist’s ability to find a performer as they 
become a moving target every four hours.  Gereau feels a start and end time is sufficient.   
 
Gereau concurs that space shall not be reserved.  She noted it does require some preparation to 
set up before 10:00 a.m. She feels restricting the transporting of performance items is an 
unnecessary provision.   
 
Gereau advised a sign is integral to their ability to perform; otherwise they are just two ladies 
sitting in a park.  The sign identifies them, is not intrusive, and without I, they would be lost in the 
crowd.  Gereau noted the sign was approved by City Hall in 2003.   
 
Gereau advised they need a table to lay out cards, chairs for them and the person they are 
reading to sit, and even with a sign they get people who have trouble finding them.  She advised 
they have received no complaints in the past 12 years using chairs, tables and signage therefore, 
she questions the need for all of these changes and additional restrictions.   
 
Gereau stated most visitors are aware of the standard musician case for a donation.  Over the 
twelve years they have worked with the city, there has been no complaints from our visitors about 
using a suggested donation (which was also approved by the city in 2003) to inform visitors of the 
value of a reading.   
 

Page 4 of 73



Regular Board Meeting  23 November 2015 

Gereau believes the current ordinances, with minimal clarifications, are sufficient to ensure the 
safety and well-being of all, have worked well for many years, and the proposed changes will 
severely and adversely impact their ability to perform in Galena.   
 
Rick Pariser, 113 S. High Street – Pariser voiced concern with recent action with regard to the 
tax levy.  While it doesn’t affect him that much, it does affect the aging community.  Elderly people 
on Social Security aren’t going to get any adjustment.  He feels the City could have held the tax 
limit.  He has been hearing a lot of commentary about this since the action was taken.   
 
Pariser also commented with regard to the Deer Committee recommendation.  A year ago 
Councilman Fach suggested asking the people.  He was scolded badly.  Pariser felt it was a good 
idea then and is still a good idea.  He feels they are headed in the right direction.   
 
Don Gereau, 219 S. High Street – Gereau noted when his wife Kathy started this business she 
went to City Hall.  Suzanne Hollingsworth approved the signage.  She advised a donation was 
fine.  For 12 years they have been following that same system.  They go down there religiously.  
The proposed changes include four or five points that would stop them from doing business (i.e., 
no table, chairs and half day).  Three years ago this ordinance came up and it was voted to make 
no changes.  He stated when you have two women from the community doing this for so long, it 
would be great to have the support of the City Council.   
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA15-21 
 
15C-0443 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
NOVEMBER 9, 2015 
 
15C-0444 – APPROVAL OF STRAY DOG CONTRACT WITH THE JO DAVIESS COUNTY 
ANIMAL CONTROL DEPARTMENT 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve Consent Agenda CA15-21.     
 
Discussion: None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Bernstein 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Renner 
            
  The motion carried.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
15C-0445 – STORM WATER AND TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PROJECT PRESENTATION BY 
UNIVERSITY OF PLATTEVILLE STUDENTS 
 
University of Wisconsin engineering students studied the following areas: 
 

1.  Elk and Hickory Street Watershed 
2.  Storm water along Franklin Street corridor 
3. Storm water along Field Street corridor 

 
Cassie Elmer, Chelsea Morgan and Trevor Moen made a presentation on their findings for the 
areas studied and provided recommendations for future improvements to water quality, reduction 
of storm run-off and traffic calming measures.   
 
15C-0446 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON MEMBERSHIP PROPOSAL BY THE 
TRI-COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE 
 

Page 5 of 73



Regular Board Meeting  23 November 2015 

Lisa McCarthy, Executive Director, Tri-County Economic Development Alliance (TCEDA) made a 
presentation detailing TCEDA accomplishments in 2015. The plan for 2016 is to continue to 
expand on the foundation built in 2015.   
 
McCarthy asked the Council for support of $7,500 per year for the next three years.   
 
No action was taken.   
 
15C-0447 – ANNUAL REPORT BY VISITGALENA.ORG 
 
Chris Hamilton presented the annual report for VisitGalena.org. 
 
15C-448 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A RECOMMENDATION FROM THE 
DEER COMMITTEE FOR AN ADVISORY REFERENDUM 
 
John Cox, Chairman of the 2015 Deer Committee noted all agendas and minutes for their 
meetings are on the city website.  They held their first meeting on October 21st.  At that time they 
discussed the structure, how to proceed and what they were hoping to obtain from the committee.  
Cox advised he worked with the Mayor to develop a plan of action for the committee.   
 
When reviewing, the committee ended up discussing the information obtained that a citizens 
group was investigating what would be required to put a referendum on the ballot.  The 
Committee discussed and agreed if an entity is going to be advised by a referendum, then the 
entity should be the one asking the question.  There is no cost to the city for the referendum to be 
on the ballot.  The questions would be required to be submitted to the County Clerk by the end of 
December.  The Deer Committee voted in favor of adding the recommendation of a referendum 
to the plan of action structure.  The vote was 3-2.  Two committee members felt if citizens wanted 
to have input they should come to the meetings and provide information.  The motion passed to 
bring this recommendation to the City Council.   
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Westemeier, to recommend putting an advisory referendum 
on the next general election coming up next year provided staff and legal counsel review the 
question.   
 
Discussion:  Council discussed.  They were opposed to the suggested language and 
recommended staff come up with more appropriate language.   
 
Staff will work on rewording the question and will bring it back to the next meeting in the form of a 
resolution.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Westemeier, Bernstein,  Fach, Hahn 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Renner 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0449 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 110.39 “STREET 
PERFORMERS” OF THE GALENA CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to defer the Ordinance amending Chapter 110.39 
“Street Performers” of the Galena Code of Ordinances to the next meeting.   
 
15C-0450 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE AMOUNT OF 
PROPERTY TAXES TO BE LEVIED IN 2015 AND COLLECTED IN 2016 
 

Page 6 of 73



Regular Board Meeting  23 November 2015 

Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Westemeier to approve the first reading of an Ordinance 
establishing the amount of property taxes to be levied in 2015 and collected in 2016 in the 
amount of $1,357,868. 
 
Discussion:  Fach appreciates the fact that Mr. Pariser brought up the people on Social Security.  
As he has said before, he thinks the CPI that we use to figure out the multiplier should be the 
Social Security CPI and not the one they come up with out of the state.  This year the Social 
Security CPI was nothing.   
 
Lincoln stated he doesn’t think we needed to do the increase.  While it is only $16,000 spread 
out, he feels sympathy for the elderly and others who are struggling.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer 
  NAYS:  Lincoln 
  ABSENT:  Renner 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0451 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST BY SALVATORE 
ROMITA FOR AN EASEMENT FROM THE GALENA RIVER TRAIL TO HIS PROPERTY 
 
Motion: Hahn moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the request by Salvatore Romita for 
an easement from the Galena River Trail to his property subject to all costs be incurred by the 
owner, 15C-0451.    
 
Discussion:   Hahn advised this property is landlocked.  This is the best way to allow them 
access without harming the trail.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier,  
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Renner 
           
  The motion carried.  
 
 
15C-0452 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND ADOPTING A 
SUPPLEMENT TO THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF GALENA 
 
Motion:  Fach moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the first reading, and waive the 
second reading, of an ordinance enacting and adopting a supplement to the Code of Ordinances 
for the City of Galena.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Fach, Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Bernstein 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Renner 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0453 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE 
POLICIES 
 
Moran advised the final quote obtained from United Health Care was 63% higher.  He 
recommended continuing with the BlueCross coverage.   
 
 

Page 7 of 73



Regular Board Meeting  23 November 2015 

 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Fach, to approve continuing the remainder of the insurance 
year with the health insurance policies from BlueCross.    
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Renner 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0454 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion: Kieffer moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the Warrants as presented.     
 
Discussion:  
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn 
  ABSENT:  Renner 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
15C-0455 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Suggestion Box – Bernstein stated she has been approached by someone who pointed out 
Dubuque has a kiosk near their food coop where people may make suggestions to city fathers.  
She feels the City may want to consider doing something similar.   
 
Snow – Westemeier commended the Street Department for job well done with the recent 
snowfall.  Hahn agreed.   
 
Thank you – Hahn thanked Chris Hamilton for his s report and the good job they do.  He also 
thanked TCEDA, the Platteville students and John Cox for their presentations.   
 
Thank you – Hahn thanked the Galena Fire Department, Fleege Electric and White’s Lawn Care 
for hanging the Christmas wreaths.   
 
Thank you – Fach thanked Mark Moran for putting the budget together.   
 
Bike Trail – Fach noticed one of the Bollards was uprooted.  He was surprised to see the 
concrete only goes about a foot deep.  He is concerned it would very easy to bump them with a 
bumper and out it would come.  He questioned if that was the specifications from the 
manufacturer.  Moran advised it was added to during the train derailment.  The rest of it is still in 
the ground.   
 
15C-0456 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Third & Rives – Third and Rives residents are finally on public sewer.  Nine residences were 
connected.   
 
Thank you – Moran thanked Nat Ewers and the Junior Gardeners for putting the lights on the 
wreaths.   
 
15C-0457 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 

Page 8 of 73



Regular Board Meeting  23 November 2015 

Mayor pro tem Lincoln thanked TCEDA for their presentation.  He would like to see the possibility 
of trying to fund some money.  He would like to take a look at it around budget time.   
 
15C-0458 - ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Westemeier, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Lincoln, Westemeier, Bernstein, Fach, Hahn, Kieffer 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Renner 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
      
The meeting adjourned at 7:56 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk         
 
 

Page 9 of 73



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        312 ½ North Main Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:     Andy Lewis, City Engineer    
 
DATE:      7 December 2015 
 
RE:  Emergency Snow Removal 

Approval of Quotes 
      
 
Request for quotes for emergency snow removal for this winter season were sent to two contractors. 
One quote was received, with hourly rates detailed as follows: 
 

Equipment Item Cost  $/hour 

#  Contractor  End Loader  Dump Truck  Skid Steer 

1  Louie’s Trenching 
Service 

150.00  75.00  90.00 

 
The quote from Louie’s Trenching Service represents the only option for snow removal. These unit 
prices are the same as the previous three years.  
 
I recommend the city council approves the quote from Louie's Trenching Service for emergency snow 
removal. 
 

Page 10 of 73



 

 

December 5, 2015 
 
 
 
 
Dear Mark Moran and Galena City Council, 
 
The Galena Lions Club is asking permission to rent the Eastside River Front 
(Depot Park)  for our annual fundraiser “Oktoberfest”.  The event will take place 
Sat. Oct.1st , 2016. The Eastside River Front (Depot Park)  will be used from 
 11 a.m.  till 10 p.m. with live entertainment, food, drink and wiener dog races.  
We are also requesting to set the tent up a couple days before to aid in 
preparation of the event or in case of inclement weather.  This years lay out 
worked well so it will remain the same for 2016.   Also we are asking the city to 
waive the parking fees for that day at that location.    
 
All proceeds will be used for seeing and hearing impaired community members 
or projects.  
 
We will work with the city on any issues that arise and the event should benefit 
the city as well.  
 
Please let me know if you need any further information.      
 
Thank you for your cooperation. 
 
 
 
Phil Schuler 
Oktoberfest committee chair 
815 -541-2973 
        
 
 
 
 

Page 11 of 73



Galena Area Chamber of Commerce   101 Bouthillier Street   Galena, IL  61036   (815) 777‐9050   www.galenachamber.com 

 

 

 

SUBMITTED: November 16, 2015 

TO:  City of Galena 

FROM:  Kathy Oberbroeckling  
Executive Director, Galena Area Chamber of Commerce 
 
RE:  2016 Halloween Parade & Festival 
 
The Galena Area Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors is requesting the following for review and 
approval: 
 

 To host the 38th Annual Halloween Parade & Festival on Saturday, October 29, 2016 in downtown 
Galena with Festival beginning at 2:00pm and Parade beginning at 6:30pm. 

 To close Perry Street and Washington Street for the use of Halloween Parade festivities beginning from 
2:00 pm to approximately 8:30 pm, or the end of the parade. This area will be blocked off from Main to 
Commerce Street and contain food vendors. Alcohol sales would be prohibited. 

 To prohibit parking on the East and West sides of Main Street from 5:00 pm to approximately 8:30 pm, 
or the end of the parade due to life safety issues. Leaving 12 designated handicapped parking spaces 
along the East side of Main Street between Green & Washington Streets. Permits for handicapped 
parking spaces should be applied for at City Hall. 

 For the City of Galena to erect additional barricades to secure people from entering, to the best of our 
ability, the actual parade route. 

  Parade route will still run down Main Street in the opposite direction starting at Franklin and ending at 
the Flood Gates. We did receive a lot of positive feedback in regard to the new parade route so we 
would like to continue with it.  

 
Thank you for your time and consideration of these requests. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Kathy Oberbroeckling 
Executive Director 
Galena Area Chamber of Commerce 
(815) 777‐9050 
 

Page 12 of 73



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:   Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 
FROM:   Matt Oldenburg, Deputy City Engineer 
 
DATE:   10 December 2015 
 
RE: Galena Fire Department Training Center Barn Project 

Acceptance of Donation of Ceiling-Mounted Heater 
 
 
As part of ongoing improvements to the barn at the Galena Fire Department Training 
Center, a request for quotes was sent to two local contractors.  Top Notch responded 
with a proposal to donate all of the materials and installation for the heater.  The other 
contractor was notified and did not submit a quote. 
 
The proposed work includes:  
 

1. Furnish and install approximately 45 feet of 1 inch steel gas piping from meter to 
ceiling-mounted heater.  Pipe shall be contained within the North wall and 
extend to heater in the Northeast corner above the ceiling and insulation.  
Insulation (installed by others) above ceiling will be approximately 12 inches 
deep, Roxul, rigid insulation.  Include all materials (pipe, fittings, fasteners, etc.) 
and labor. 

2. Furnish and install a ceiling-mounted, natural gas heater in the Northeast corner 
of the barn.  Coordinate with Owner for exact placement.  Electrical outlet to be 
installed by others near the location of the heater on the ceiling.  Heater vent 
shall be ran through the adjacent wall of the structure rather than the roof.  
Heater shall be Modine, Reznor or equal and provide sufficient capacity to heat 
approximately 22,000 cubic feet of space.  Estimates for this space require a 
125,000 BTU heater; Contractor may recommend adjustment to heater size prior 
to submittal of quote.  Contractor shall provide manufacturer’s details of 
proposed heating unit and submit with the quote.  Contractor to provide all 
equipment, materials and labor. 

 We recommend the city council accepts the donation from Top Notch to perform the 
heater work at the GFD Barn.  This donation is equivalent to approximately $4,000.00; 
the final amount will be submitted by the owner, it was not available at the time of this 
memo. 
 
 

 

Page 13 of 73



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        312 ½ North Main Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:     Andy Lewis, City Engineer   
 
DATE:      8 December 2015 
 
RE:      Foot Bridge Inspections 
      Approval of Engineering Services 
 
 
Every few years our bridge consultant IIW Engineers complete inspections of the Green and Meeker 
Street footbridges. This is done to ensure the bridges are in a safe condition for public use and to 
identify any issues that may speed deterioration of the structure. 
 
Proposed work with costs are detailed as follows: 
 
Green Street Bridge 
Perform visual and in‐depth inspection of superstructure and substructure, including abutments, piers, 
bearings, concrete deck, railing and light pole attachments. Also, photograph current structural 
conditions and complete summary report of inspection findings, repair and maintenance schedule. 
Total cost: $1,600 
 
Meeker Street Bridge 
Perform visual and in‐depth inspection of superstructure and substructure, including abutments, piers, 
bearings, deteriorated concrete approach ramp, deck, railing and light pole attachments. Also, 
photograph current structural conditions and complete summary report of inspection findings, repair 
and maintenance schedule. This will include preliminary design of replacement approach ramp with 
recommendation to use either reinforced concrete or aluminum deck. Total cost: $1,800 
 
Budget items: Meeker Street Bridge (01.41.890.05) and consultant services (01.45.532) will fund the 
proposed engineering services. 
 
I recommend the city council approves a contract with IIW Engineers to complete engineering services 
for inspection of the Green and Meeker Street footbridges for a total not to exceed sum of $3,400. 
 

 

Page 14 of 73



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Janelle Keeffer, Facilities Manager  

DATE:    December 9, 2015 

RE:    Permission for JDCF / GALE to burn brush at Gateway Park  
 
 
The city works in partnership with the Jo Daviess Conservation Foundation (JDCF) 
and volunteers such as the Galena Area Land Enthusiasts (GALE) to continue 
restoration of Galena Gateway Park & Land Preserve.  
 
The GALE group works diligently at the site and has done a significant amount of 
clearing on remote areas of the property. They would like to request permission to 
burn approximately six large piles of brush between now and February 2016 as 
weather permits. Specifically, they would not burn unless there was snow cover. The 
team, under supervision of JDCF director of land stewardship Ryan Getz, would plan 
a series of burns over the course of three or four days to complete this project. The 
GALE group meets at Gateway Park on Tuesdays and Thursday from 9‐noon, during 
which time the burn would be initiated.  
 
I would like to request permission from the City Council to allow this burn, if weather 
conditions are favorable. If approved, fire chief Randy Beadle and local city and 
county law officials will proactively be contacted as to the exact day and time of 
event. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
cc:   Randy Beadle, Fire Chief, Galena Fire Department 
    Ryan Getz, Director of Land Stewardship, JDCF 
 

 

Page 15 of 73



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    December 9, 2015 

RE:    Street Performers Ordinance  
 
 
At the November 9 council meeting, you voted to proceed with the preparation of an ordinance 
considering changes to the Street Performers Ordinance.  Possible changes were presented in 
ordinance form for your consideration at the November 23 meeting where it was deferred.  I am 
again attaching the ordinance for your review and discussion.   
 
Two versions of the draft ordinance are included.  One version has all of the changes highlighted, 
the other does not.  The city attorney will be available at the meeting to provide his opinion about 
any of the proposed changes or any other changes that you might suggest for consideration. 
 
You will recall that comments were received from street performers and the general public at 
recent council meetings.  The following concerns about the draft ordinance were expressed. 

 

 Restricting a performer to four hours at one location would be unnecessary and difficult to 
regulate 

 Restricting the amount of items used in the performance is unnecessary 

 Prohibiting tables would prevent some of the current performers from continuing their 
performances 

 Prohibiting signs would make it difficult for the public to locate some performers 

 Prohibiting signs would prevent performers from communicating suggested donation 
amounts 

 
Spray paint artist, Jason Allen, has also expressed displeasure with the prospect of banning the use 
of aerosol paints by performers.  A ban of aerosols is included in the draft ordinance.  
 
I would be happy to make any modifications to the draft ordinance that you may want.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you. 

 
 

 

Page 16 of 73



1 
 

Ordinance #‐15‐_____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 110.39 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  

OF THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 

   

  WHEREAS, the City Council seeks to continue to encourage creative expression in public 

spaces while at the same time protecting the public health, safety and general welfare, and 

              WHEREAS, Chapter 110.39 of the Galena Code of Ordinances, Street Performers, 

regulates the performing of music or otherwise entertaining in public while collecting 

donations, and 

              WHEREAS, the City Council desires to update the Street Performers ordinance with 
attention to the constitutional protections of free speech and expression and in a manner 
consistent with the overall public interest.  
 
   THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois, as follows: 

 
SECTION I:  The definition of “Street Performers” in Chapter 110.02, entitled 

“DEFINITIONS”, of the Galena Code of Ordinances shall continue in full force and effect as 

follows: 

STREET PERFORMER.  A person engaging in a performance that includes, but is 

not limited to, the following activities: playing musical instruments, singing, 

dancing, acting, pantomiming, puppeteering, juggling, reciting, or creating visual 

art in its entirety as a performance. 

   
             SECTION II:  Chapter 110.39, entitled “STREET PERFORMERS”, of the Galena Code of 
Ordinances shall be replaced in whole with the following: 
 

§ 110.39  STREET PERFORMERS. 

   (A)   Intent. The City of Galena finds that street performers provide a public amenity that 

enhances the character of the community and seeks to encourage such performances in a 

manner consistent with the overall public interest. The City of Galena also recognizes that 

street performers seek to and do draw crowds to their performances. This can create safety 

problems by impacting the ability of pedestrians to move safely on sidewalks and through 

crosswalks and impeding the response time of safety personnel. It can also impact access to 

and egress from businesses. This section imposes reasonable time, place, and manner 

Page 17 of 73



2 
 

restrictions on street performers to the extent necessary to ensure the safety of performers, 

their audience, and the general public and to prevent unreasonable interference with the 

enjoyment of peace and quiet by residents in their homes or the ability of businesses to 

operate and conduct their business. 

   (B)   License required.  It shall be unlawful to perform in public without first obtaining a street 

performer license. 

      (1)   An application for a street performer license shall be made to the City Clerk. 

      (2)   The fee for a street performer license shall be $25 per year. Said fee shall be paid at 

time of application. 

      (3)   The street performer license shall be valid from the date of issuance through April 30. 

      (4)   The license holder shall post the license in a conspicuous location at the location of the 

performance. 

      (5)   The street performer license is non‐transferable. 

   (C)   Rules and regulations. 

       (1)   Performing is limited to 10:00 am. to 8:00 p.m. 

     (12)   It shall be unlawful to block or restrict an open public street or sidewalk at any time.No 

performance shall prevent the public from utilizing any public benches, waste receptacles, 

informational signs or other amenities during the performance.  No performance shall restrict 

the width of any sidewalk to less than five feet or otherwise inhibit the free movement of 

pedestrians on the sidewalk.  No performer shall perform on any street or in any public parking 

space. 

     (3)   To prevent congestion on sidewalks, no performer shall perform less than 50 feet from 

another performer or group of performers on the Main Street, Warren Street, Green Street, 

Washington Street, Hill Street, Perry Street or Diagonal Street right‐of‐ways. 

     (4)    No performer shall perform within 10 feet of the doorway or an open window of any 

business or residence.  If a sufficient crowd gathers to observe a performer such that the 

passage of the public through a public area is blocked or obstructed, a police officer or fire 

official may disperse that portion of the crowd that is blocking or obstructing the passage of the 

public. If a performer cannot conduct a performance in a location without blocking or 

obstructing the passage of the public, a police officer or fire official may cause the performer to 

leave the location, but shall not prevent the performer from occupying another location in 

compliance with this Chapter. 

     (5)   A performer may perform at a single public location for a maximum of four hours per 

day.  The performance time at a location is inclusive of any breaks.  Nothing shall prevent the 

Page 18 of 73



3 
 

performer from occupying another location in compliance with this Chapter after a four hour 

period. 

     (6)   Performance space shall not be reserved and no performer shall leave his or her 

instruments, props, equipment, or other items unattended before 10:00 a.m. or after 8:00 p.m. 

      (2)   Performing is limited to 10:00 am. to 8:00 p.m. 

     (7)    Not more than five performers may perform as a coordinated unit or group in one 

location.   

     (8)    No performer shall assemble at the performance site or perform with more 

instruments, props, equipment, or other items than the performer can reasonably transport or 

remove at one time on his or her person.   

     (9)   No performer shall construct, erect, or maintain any stage, platform, table or similar 

structure for use during any performance.  A performer may sit on a stool or chair while 

performing. 

     (10)    No performer shall charge a fee for their performance or items or solicit donations 

verbally, by gesture, or in writing at the performance location.  Only a small container or 

musical case may be left open to indicate that free will contributions will be accepted.      

     (11)  No signs are permitted at the performance location. 

      (312)   No performer shall utilize any speaker, microphone or mechanical amplification 

device. 

      (413)   No performer shall generate any sound by any means so that the sound is louder 

than 70 decibels (70dB) on the Capital A Scale of an ANSI approved sound level meter measured 

at a distance of 50 feet or more, either horizontally or vertically from the point of generation. 

      (514)   No performer shall use any knife, sword, torch, flame, axe, saw, or other object that 

could cause serious bodily injury to any person. No performer shall use any knife, sword, torch, 

flame, aerosol, spray paint, axe, saw, or other object, liquid, gas, or toxin that could be 

flammable, explode or otherwise cause serious bodily injury to any person. 

     (15)  The use of animals is not permitted. 

     (16)   The use of chalk on the sidewalk is prohibited. 

     (17)   No performer shall plug any electrical device into any outlet, use a generator, or use 

lighting. 

     (17)   No street performer shall engage in the application of tattoos or body piercing.  No 

street performer shall include obscenity in a performance.  No street performer shall engage in 

harassment or coercion of a passersby. 

Page 19 of 73



4 
 

      (6)   No performer shall construct, erect, or maintain any stage, platform, or similar structure 

for use during any performance. 

      (7)   Performers may collect donations during or immediately following a performance, 

however no fee shall be charged for any performance. 

   (D)   Exemptions. Performances or performers sponsored by or within a licensed street dance, 

fair, festival, carnival, circus, or similar event, and for the purpose of entertainment, when no 

solicitation for money is made shall be exempt from the license requirements of this section. 

   (E)   Violation—Penalty   

     (1)    Complaints regarding any street performer shall be received by the police department 

and shall include the complainant, date, time, place, and details of the complaint.  All 

complaints shall be forwarded to the mayor.   

     (2)   The mayor may suspend a license for not more than 60 days if:  

a) A performer violates any of the provisions of this Chapter. 

b) A street performer has not complied with a request to follow verbal or written 

guidelines from either the mayor or the police department. 

c) The City has received at least three documented verbal or written complaints regarding 

violations of the provisions of this Chapter and stating the complainant, date, time, 

place and details of the complaint.  

     (3)   The mayor may request that the city council revoke a license that has been suspended.  

The revocation of a license shall be for a period not to exceed one year.   

     (4)   A performer whose license has been suspended or revoked may request and is entitled 

to a public hearing concerning the suspension or revocation. Written notice of the date, place 

and time of the hearing will be given to the individual at least 7 days prior to the hearing. The 

written notice will set forth the facts constituting the basis for the suspension or revocation. A 

hearing panel comprised of the mayor and city council will hear oral testimony, receive written 

evidence and provide a written decision to the performer.  A majority vote of the full city 

council shall be required to uphold or modify the original action.    

     (F)   Severability 

     If any provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part of this chapter shall, for any 

reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, said 

judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this chapter. It is hereby 

declared to be the legislative intent of the council that this chapter would have been adopted 

had such unconstitutional or invalid provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part 

thereof not been included. 

Page 20 of 73



5 
 

             SECTION III:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with the provisions of this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 

             SECTION IV:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval in the manner provided by law. 

             SECTION V:  Passed on this ____ day of ____________, A.D., 2015, in open session. 

 

 

                                                     ___________________________________ 

            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

  

Page 21 of 73



1 
 

Ordinance #‐15‐_____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 110.39 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  

OF THE CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 

   

  WHEREAS, the City Council seeks to continue to encourage creative expression in public 

spaces while at the same time protecting the public health, safety and general welfare, and 

              WHEREAS, Chapter 110.39 of the Galena Code of Ordinances, Street Performers, 

regulates the performing of music or otherwise entertaining in public while collecting 

donations, and 

              WHEREAS, the City Council desires to update the Street Performers ordinance with 
attention to the constitutional protections of free speech and expression and in a manner 
consistent with the overall public interest.  
 
   THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois, as follows: 

 
SECTION I:  The definition of “Street Performers” in Chapter 110.02, entitled 

“DEFINITIONS”, of the Galena Code of Ordinances shall continue in full force and effect as 

follows: 

STREET PERFORMER.  A person engaging in a performance that includes, but is 

not limited to, the following activities: playing musical instruments, singing, 

dancing, acting, pantomiming, puppeteering, juggling, reciting, or creating visual 

art in its entirety as a performance. 

   
             SECTION II:  Chapter 110.39, entitled “STREET PERFORMERS”, of the Galena Code of 
Ordinances shall be replaced in whole with the following: 
 

§ 110.39  STREET PERFORMERS. 

   (A)   Intent. The City of Galena finds that street performers provide a public amenity that 

enhances the character of the community and seeks to encourage such performances in a 

manner consistent with the overall public interest. The City of Galena also recognizes that 

street performers seek to and do draw crowds to their performances. This can create safety 

problems by impacting the ability of pedestrians to move safely on sidewalks and through 

crosswalks and impeding the response time of safety personnel. It can also impact access to 

and egress from businesses. This section imposes reasonable time, place, and manner 

Page 22 of 73



2 
 

restrictions on street performers to the extent necessary to ensure the safety of performers, 

their audience, and the general public and to prevent unreasonable interference with the 

enjoyment of peace and quiet by residents in their homes or the ability of businesses to 

operate and conduct their business. 

   (B)   License required.  It shall be unlawful to perform in public without first obtaining a street 

performer license. 

      (1)   An application for a street performer license shall be made to the City Clerk. 

      (2)   The fee for a street performer license shall be $25 per year. Said fee shall be paid at 

time of application. 

      (3)   The street performer license shall be valid from the date of issuance through April 30. 

      (4)   The license holder shall post the license in a conspicuous location at the location of the 

performance. 

      (5)   The street performer license is non‐transferable. 

   (C)   Rules and regulations. 

     (1)   Performing is limited to 10:00 am. to 8:00 p.m. 

     (2)   No performance shall prevent the public from utilizing any public benches, waste 

receptacles, informational signs or other amenities during the performance.  No performance 

shall restrict the width of any sidewalk to less than five feet or otherwise inhibit the free 

movement of pedestrians on the sidewalk.  No performer shall perform on any street or in any 

public parking space. 

     (3)   To prevent congestion on sidewalks, no performer shall perform less than 50 feet from 

another performer or group of performers on the Main Street, Warren Street, Green Street, 

Washington Street, Hill Street, Perry Street or Diagonal Street right‐of‐ways. 

     (4)    No performer shall perform within 10 feet of the doorway or an open window of any 

business or residence.  If a sufficient crowd gathers to observe a performer such that the 

passage of the public through a public area is blocked or obstructed, a police officer or fire 

official may disperse that portion of the crowd that is blocking or obstructing the passage of the 

public. If a performer cannot conduct a performance in a location without blocking or 

obstructing the passage of the public, a police officer or fire official may cause the performer to 

leave the location, but shall not prevent the performer from occupying another location in 

compliance with this Chapter. 

     (5)   A performer may perform at a single public location for a maximum of four hours per 

day.  The performance time at a location is inclusive of any breaks.  Nothing shall prevent the 

Page 23 of 73



3 
 

performer from occupying another location in compliance with this Chapter after a four hour 

period. 

     (6)   Performance space shall not be reserved and no performer shall leave his or her 

instruments, props, equipment, or other items unattended before 10:00 a.m. or after 8:00 p.m. 

     (7)    Not more than five performers may perform as a coordinated unit or group in one 

location.   

     (8)    No performer shall assemble at the performance site or perform with more 

instruments, props, equipment, or other items than the performer can reasonably transport or 

remove at one time on his or her person.   

     (9)   No performer shall construct, erect, or maintain any stage, platform, table or similar 

structure for use during any performance.  A performer may sit on a stool or chair while 

performing. 

     (10)    No performer shall charge a fee for their performance or items or solicit donations 

verbally, by gesture, or in writing at the performance location.  Only a small container or 

musical case may be left open to indicate that free will contributions will be accepted.      

     (11)  No signs are permitted at the performance location. 

    (12)   No performer shall utilize any speaker, microphone or mechanical amplification device. 

    (13)   No performer shall generate any sound by any means so that the sound is louder than 

70 decibels (70dB) on the Capital A Scale of an ANSI approved sound level meter measured at a 

distance of 50 feet or more, either horizontally or vertically from the point of generation. 

      (14)    No performer shall use any knife, sword, torch, flame, aerosol, spray paint, axe, saw, 

or other object, liquid, gas, or toxin that could be flammable, explode or otherwise cause 

serious bodily injury to any person. 

     (15)  The use of animals is not permitted. 

     (16)   The use of chalk on the sidewalk is prohibited. 

     (17)   No performer shall plug any electrical device into any outlet, use a generator, or use 

lighting. 

     (17)   No street performer shall engage in the application of tattoos or body piercing.  No 

street performer shall include obscenity in a performance.  No street performer shall engage in 

harassment or coercion of a passersby. 

   (D)   Exemptions. Performances or performers sponsored by or within a licensed street dance, 

fair, festival, carnival, circus, or similar event, and for the purpose of entertainment, when no 

solicitation for money is made shall be exempt from the license requirements of this section. 

Page 24 of 73



4 
 

   (E)   Violation—Penalty   

     (1)    Complaints regarding any street performer shall be received by the police department 

and shall include the complainant, date, time, place, and details of the complaint.  All 

complaints shall be forwarded to the mayor.   

     (2)   The mayor may suspend a license for not more than 60 days if:  

a) A performer violates any of the provisions of this Chapter. 

b) A street performer has not complied with a request to follow verbal or written 

guidelines from either the mayor or the police department. 

c) The City has received at least three documented verbal or written complaints regarding 

violations of the provisions of this Chapter and stating the complainant, date, time, 

place and details of the complaint.  

     (3)   The mayor may request that the city council revoke a license that has been suspended.  

The revocation of a license shall be for a period not to exceed one year.   

     (4)   A performer whose license has been suspended or revoked may request and is entitled 

to a public hearing concerning the suspension or revocation. Written notice of the date, place 

and time of the hearing will be given to the individual at least 7 days prior to the hearing. The 

written notice will set forth the facts constituting the basis for the suspension or revocation. A 

hearing panel comprised of the mayor and city council will hear oral testimony, receive written 

evidence and provide a written decision to the performer.  A majority vote of the full city 

council shall be required to uphold or modify the original action.    

     (F)   Severability 

     If any provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part of this chapter shall, for any 

reason, be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, said 

judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this chapter. It is hereby 

declared to be the legislative intent of the council that this chapter would have been adopted 

had such unconstitutional or invalid provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part 

thereof not been included. 

             SECTION III:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with the provisions of this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 

              

   

Page 25 of 73



5 
 

             SECTION IV:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval in the manner provided by law. 

             SECTION V:  Passed on this ____ day of ____________, A.D., 2015, in open session. 

 

 

                                                     ___________________________________ 

            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

  

Page 26 of 73



County, Illinois.

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Administration
Personnel - Salaries 159,125 159,125 0
Personnel - Elected 17,500 500 17,000
Professional Services 482,500 482,500 0
Communications 800 800 0
Professional Development 3,000 3,000 0
Debt Service 613,275 613,275 0
Capital Outlays 0 0 0
Other Expenditures 16,500 16,500 0

Total 1,292,700 1,275,700 17,000

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Finance
Personnel - Salaries 87,150 87,150 0
Insurance Benefits 388,700 88,700 300,000
Maintenance Services 6,500 6,500 0
Professional Services 62,410 62,410 0
Communications 11,500 11,500 0
Professional Development 1,600 1,600 0
Service Charges 12,600 12,600 0
Other Contractual Services 0 0 0
Maintenance Supplies 7,500 7,500 0
Capital Outlays 2,200 2,200 0

Total 580,160 280,160 300,000

ORDINANCE NO. 0-15-__  2014 TAX LEVY ORDINANCE

       SECTION I: That the amount hereinafter set forth, or so much thereof as may be 
authorized by law, and the same are hereby levied upon all property subject to taxation 
within the municipality as that property is assessed and equalized for the current year and for 
such purposes as: Parks & Recreation; General Corporate; Garbage Disposal; Flood 
Control; Fire Protection: Annual Audit: Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund; Social Security; 
Chlorination; Street Lighting; Water Treatment; Street & Bridge; Police Protection; 
Unemployment Insurance; Worker's Compensation; City Tort Judgment & Liability; 
Emergency Services and School Crossing Guards for the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2016, and ending April 30, 2017. 

       BE IT ORDAINED BY the Mayor and City Council of the City of Galena, Illinois:

An Ordinance levying taxes for all corporate purposes for the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 

FOR TAXES TO BE COLLECTED IN 2015

11/18/2015

Page 1 

Page 27 of 73



FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
City Clerk
Personnel - Salaries 9,100 0 9,100
Maintenance Services 0 0 0
Professional Services 5,000 5,000 0
Communications 1,700 1,700 0
Professional Development 2,750 2,750 0
Service Charges 0 0 0
Other Contractual Services 0 0 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
Capital Outlays 0 0 0

Total 18,550 9,450 9,100
 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Zoning
Personnel - Salaries 67,900 42,250 25,650
Personnel - Elected 1,900 1,900 0
Professional Services 1,450 1,450 0
Communications 1,250 1,250 0
Professional Development 2,950 2,950 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
Capital Outlays 1,750 1,750 0
Other Expenditures 0 0 0

Total 77,200 51,550 25,650

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Building
Personnel - Salaries 63,920 56,920 7,000
Other Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 0 0 0
Professional Services 12,000 12,000 0
Communications 400 300 0
Professional Development 3,300 3,300 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
General Supplies 0 0 0
Other Expenditures 1,500 1,500 0

Total 81,120 74,020 7,100

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Engineering
Personnel - Salaries 22,750 22,750 0
Professional Services 11,000 8,000 3,000
Professional Development 2,000 2,000 0
Capital Outlays 1,100 1,100 0

Total 36,850 33,850 3,000
 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Police
Personnel - Salaries 617,630 609,445 8,185
Other Benefits 9,350 9,350 0
Maintenance Services 12,450 12,450 0
Professional Services 24,100 24,100 0
Communications 9,650 9,650 0
Professional Development 8,130 8,130 0
Service Charges 11,000 11,000 0
Maintenance Supplies 22,200 22,200 0
General Supplies 5,000 5,000 0
Capital Outlays 25,000 25,000 0
Other Expenditures 17,970 17,970 0

Total 762,480 754,295 8,185

11/18/2015

Page 2 

Page 28 of 73



 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Fund
Public Works
Personnel - Salaries 378,475 268,066 110,409
Other Benefits 2,000 2,000 0
Maintenance Services 57,250 57,250 0
Professional Services 14,000 14,000 0
Communications 1,800 1,800 0
Professional Development 500 500 0
Service Charges 32,150 32,150 0
Maintenance Supplies 24,300 24,300 0
General Supplies 33,000 33,000 0
Debt Service 0 0 0
Capital Outlays 170,450 170,450 0

Total 713,925 603,516 110,409
 

General Fund Grand Total 3,562,985 3,082,541 480,444

REF: General Corporate Tax (65ILCS 5/8-3.1) 425,424
REF: Police Protection Tax (65ILCS 5/11-1-3 & 5.1) 55,000
REF: School Cross Guards Tax (65ILCS 5/11-80-23) 10
REF: Street Lighting Tax (65ILCS 5/11-80-5) 10
REF: Street & Bridges (65ILCS 5/11-81-2) 0

Total Corporate Levy 480,444

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Annual Audit
Annual Audit 28,520 10,520 18,000
Book Reconciliation 550 550 0

Total 29,070 11,070 18,000

REF: Audit Tax (65ILCS 5/8-8-8) 18,000

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Emergency Services
Ambulance Service 0 0 0
Siren Maintenance 1,000 600 400
Communication 500 393 107
Electric 1,460 1,110 350
Capital Outlays 0 0 0

Total 2,960 2,103 857

REF: Emergency Services & Disaster Operations Tax (65ILCS 5/8-3-16) 857

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Garbage Collection
Personnel Services - Salaries 8,970 8,970 0
Insurance Benefits 0 0 0
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Professional Services 222,940 222,930 10
Communications 4,000 4,000 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
General Supplies 0 0 0
Other Expenditures 6,000 6,000 0

Total 241,910 241,900 10

10REF: Garbage Disposal Tax
(651LCS 5/11-19-4)

11/18/2015

Page 3 

Page 29 of 73



FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Workers’ Compensation
Workers’ Compensation Insurance 93,000 0 50,000

Total 93,000 0 50,000

50,000

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Liability Insurance
Insurance Benefit 7,550 0 7,500
City Building & Content 47,150 0 47,150
Public Official's Liability 300 0 300
Automobile Insurance 19,850 0 19,850
Tort Insurance 67,450 0 86,000
Inland Marine 3,500 0 3,500
Boiler & Machinery 2,700 0 2,700
Employee Crime 0 0 0
Employee's Bond 0 0 0
Treasurer's Bond 0 0 0

Total 148,500 0 167,000

REF: City Tort Judgment & Liability Insurance Fund (745 ILCS 10/9-107) 167,000

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Parks Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 74,100 74,090 10
Maintenance Services 10,000 10,000 0
Professional Services 1,500 1,500 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
Service Charges 6,000 6,000 0
General Supplies 13,000 13,000 0
Debt Service 53,925 53,925 0
Capital Outlays 1,549,500 1,549,500 0
Other Expenditures 11,500 11,500 0

Total 1,719,525 1,719,515 10

REF: Parks Tax (651LCS 5/11-98-1) 48,780

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Social Security
Social Security Tax 130,000 0 196,000

Total 130,000 0 196,000

REF: Social Security Fund (40ILCS 5/21-110 & 110.1) 196,000

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Flood Control Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 39,600 39,590 10
Insurance Benefits 0 0 0
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 13,050 13,050 0
Professional Services 0 0 0
Communications 0 0 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
Service Charges 2,000 2,000 0
Maintenance Supplies 2,000 2,000 0
General Supplies 0 0 0
Capital Outlays 3,000 3,000 0
Other Expenditures 1,500 1,500 0
Total 61,150 61,140 10

REF: Levee Tax (65ILCS 5/11-112-1 & 2 10

REF: Workers' Compensation and Occupational Disease (7451LCS 10/9-107)

11/18/2015

Page 4 

Page 30 of 73



FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Fire Protection Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 35,400 0 35,400
Insurance Benefits 2,500 0 2,500
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 2,700 200 2,500
Professional Services 3,000 0 3,000
Communications 1,800 0 1,800
Professional Development 6,900 0 6,900
Service Charges 11,200 0 11,200
Other Contractual Services 0 0 0
Maintenance Supplies 11,250 1,000 10,250
General Supplies 18,050 4,800 13,250
Capital Outlays 540,000 287,000 253,000
Other Expenditures 8,050 3,603 4,447
Total 640,850 296,603 344,247

REF: Fire Protection Tax (65ILCS 5/11-71 & 3) 344,247

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Water Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 67,050 67,040 10
Insurance Benefits 0 0 0
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 0 0 0
Professional Services 0 0 0
Communications 2,500 2,500 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
Service Charges 4,500 4,500 0
Other Contractual Services 325,000 325,000 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
General Supplies 400 400 0
Debt Service 162,100 162,100 0
Capital Outlays 82,000 82,000 0
Other Expenditures 48,235 48,235 0

Total 691,785 691,775 10

REF: Waterworks System Tax (65ILCS 5/11-131-1) 10

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Sewer Fund
Personnel Services - Salaries 50,650 50,650 0
Insurance Benefits 0 0 0
Pension Benefits 0 0 0
Maintenance Services 1,500 1,500 0
Professional Services 9,650 9,640 10
Communications 500 500 0
Professional Development 0 0 0
Other Contractual Services 325,000 325,000 0
Maintenance Supplies 0 0 0
General Supplies 500 500 0
Debt Service 600,140 600,140 0
Capital Outlays 396,000 396,000 0
Other Expenditures 42,285 42,285 0

Total 1,426,225 1,426,215 10

REF: Chlorination of Sewage Tax (65ILCS 5/11-142-3) 10

11/18/2015

Page 5 

Page 31 of 73



 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Pension Benefits 173,000 151,000 22,000
Personal Property Replacement 
Tax (Library) 7,000 7,000 0

Total 180,000 158,000 22,000

REF: Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (40 ILCS 5/7-171) 22,000

 

FUND
AMOUNT 

BUDGETED $
FROM OTHER 
SOURCES $ AMOUNT LEVIED $

Unemployment Insurance 
Unemployment Payments 25,875 0 30,500

Total 25,875 0 30,500

Unemployment Compensation Fund (745ILCS 10/9-1-7) 30,500

TAX LEVY SUMMARY AMOUNT LEVIED $

General Corporate Tax 425,424
Police Protection Tax 55,000
School Cross Guards 10
Street Lighting 10
Street & Bridges Tax 0
Annual Audit Tax 18,000
Emergency Services Tax 857
Garbage Disposal Tax 10
Worker's Compensation Tax 50,000
City Tort Judgment & Liability Insurance 167,000
Parks & Recreation Tax 48,780
Social Security Tax 196,000
Flood Control Tax 10
Fire Protection Tax 344,247
Water Treatment Tax 10
Chlorination Tax 10
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 22,000
Unemployment Insurance Tax 30,500

TOTAL TAX LEVY 1,357,868

          SECTION II: That the amount levied for each object and purpose is placed in a 
separate column under the heading, "Amount Levied," which appears over same being as 
follows, to-wit:

          SECTION III: That if any section, subdivision or sentence of this ordinance shall for 
any reason be held invalid or to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portion of this ordinance.

SECTION IV: That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its adoption as
provided by law.

11/18/2015

Page 6 

Page 32 of 73



AYES:   

NAYS:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:   

Terry Renner, Mayor
ATTEST:

Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk

Adopted this ___th day of ______________ 2015 pursuant to a roll call vote by the City
Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois.

11/18/2015

Page 7 

Page 33 of 73



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    November 4, 2015 

RE:    Tax Levy 
 
 
Before the last Tuesday in December, the City must adopt a tax levy ordinance for property 
taxes to be collected next fiscal year.  Prior to considering and adopting the ordinance, the 
council must make a motion communicating the amount of taxes the City expects to levy.  This 
report is intended to provide you with the information you need to make the necessary motion. 
 
I have completed the calculations needed to determine our revenue needs and the property tax 
revenue available under the voter‐approved Property Tax Extension Limitation Law (PTELL).  I 
used the assessed value estimate from the County Assessor in estimating the available property 
tax revenue.  In the same manner as in recent years, I am presenting two options.  First, levy 
the same amount as last year.  Second, levy the maximum amount available under PTELL.    
 
In preparing the levy options, I calculated expected revenues, expenses and fund balances for 
all funds supported by the tax levy for the current and next fiscal year.  My goal was to levy 
sufficiently to insure that each fund finishes the coming year in compliance with the Minimum 
Fund Balance Policy.  For most funds, this means the fund would end the fiscal year with a 
balance of at least 30 percent of annual expenses.    
 
With the first option, the city would collect $1,341,412 of property taxes in 2015, the same as in 
2014.  The levy rate would decrease from $1.38 to $1.34 per $100 of equalized assessed value.   
With the second option, the city would collect all of the new tax dollars available under PTELL.  
Taking into account an expected increase in city‐wide equalized assessed value of current 
property, the value of new construction, and a very minimal Consumer Price Index increase of 
0.8%, the City could collect a maximum of $16,456 new tax dollars.   
 
If we were to collect the maximum, our tax (levy) rate would increase slightly from $1.38 to 
$1.39 per $100 of equalized assessed value.  The total dollars collected from the levy would 
increase from $1,341,412 to $1,357,868.  Under this scenario, I would anticipate all levy 
supported funds ending next fiscal year in compliance with the Minimum Fund Balance Policy.   
The property tax rate for the General Corporate tax fund would be at the maximum level 

 

Page 34 of 73



2 of 5 

required to be eligible for State of Illinois and Jo Daviess County funding for the Dewey Avenue 
bridge replacement (refer to Petition adopted at the October 27, 2014 city council meeting).    
 
According to the Truth in Taxation law, the City must conduct a public hearing on the proposed 
tax levy if the total levy dollars levied are expected to exceed the previous year’s levy dollars by 
more than five percent.  Levying the maximum would result in an increase of only 1.2% of 
actual levy dollars over last year.  A public hearing is not required with either option.   
 
To make the official determination of whether a public hearing is required, you are required to 
adopt a motion stating the amount of property tax the City expects to levy.   The recommended 
motion would state, “The amount of property taxes the City of Galena expects to levy in 
2015, to be collected in 2016, is $ ______________.”    
 
At the meeting following your decision on the amount you expect to levy, the first reading of 
the actual tax levy ordinance would be presented.  The ordinance must be approved not later 
than the December 28 meeting. 
 
I have attached an Addendum to this report that provides more detail about how the levy is 
calculated, the maximum levy by fund, as well as a historical view of the City’s tax levy.   
 
 

Page 35 of 73



3 of 5 

ADDENDUM 
 
This report is intended to explain the effect of the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law 
(PTELL) on the tax levy, the individual components of the levy and the maximum levy for fiscal 
year 2016‐17.    
  
PTELL 
From one year to the next, the amount we may increase our tax levy is prescribed by PTELL.  
The 1991 law was intended to limit property tax growth by allowing a taxing district to receive a 
limited inflationary increase in taxes on existing property, plus an additional amount for new 
construction.  
 
With PTELL, a formula was established for calculating the “limiting rate” or the maximum levy 
rate available to the taxing district each year.  The limiting rate dictates the total taxes that may 
be levied and collected.  Only two factors can increase the limiting rate.  First, the formula takes 
into account the annual cost of living (CPI) increase.  This year the CPI adjustment is 0. 8% (1.5% 
last year).  Second, the formula considers the equalized assessed value (EAV) of any new 
construction or annexations that have occurred during the year.  For this levy year, our new 
construction (and annexations) is estimated to have an equalized value of $409,946.  This is 
based on an estimate from the Jo Daviess County Assessor.    
 
The limiting rate for the coming tax year is estimated as 1.39% of the total city‐wide EAV of 
$97,239,703. Expressed another way, the limiting rate is $1.39 per $100 of EAV.  The calculated 
rate would be a slight increase from $1.38 this year.   
 
Multiplying the limiting rate by the total estimated city EAV of $97,239,703 results in a 
maximum tax levy for the coming year of $1,357,868.  This calculation is expressed as follows: 
 

$97,239,703 (total city EAV) x 1.39% (limiting rate) = $1,357,868 (maximum levy) 
 

The amount of new dollars that we can add to our tax base is calculated as the difference 
between the maximum levy ($1,357,868) and the current year levy ($1,341,412).  The 
difference or the amount of new dollars we may levy is $16,456 or 1.2% more than last year.  
This calculation is expressed as follows:    
 

$1,357,868 (maximum levy) ‐ $1,341,412 (current year levy) = $16,456 (new tax 
dollars) 

 
According to the PTELL, if a taxing body does not levy for all of the new dollars allowed by the 
limiting rate, it may never use the tax dollar value of the CPI or new construction from that year 
in determining future tax levies.  If a taxing body consistently levies for less than is allowed by 
the limiting rate, the loss of potential tax dollars is compounded.  A public referendum is the 
only way to levy at a rate greater than the limiting rate.     
 

Page 36 of 73



4 of 5 

Tax Levy Components  
After determining the maximum levy allowed by PTELL, we must decide how much of the 
available new dollars to collect and how to distribute them across the individual tax funds.  The 
tax levy is comprised of 18 separate levies or funds.  Current fund balances and anticipated 
non‐property tax revenues and expenses are evaluated to determine the amount of taxes to 
collect in each individual fund.   Assuming the maximum levy, the $1,357,868 of tax dollars 
could be effectively distributed across the various funds is shown in Table 1.  The actual levy 
rate for each fund is also shown along with the rate and taxes levied in the 2015.   

 
Table 1.   Proposed Tax Levy 

 
 

Levy Fund 
2015

Actual 
Rate 

2015
Actual 

Tax 

2016
Proposed 

Rate 

2016 
Proposed 

Tax 

Corporate  0.4375 $424,191  0.4375  $425,424  

Street and Bridge1  0.0000 $‐    0.0000 $‐  

Police Protection  0.0085 $8,193  0.0566  $55,000  

School Crossing Guard  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

Street Lighting  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

Audit  0.0186 $18,005  0.0185  $18,000  

Emergency Services  0.0009 $863  0.0009  $857  

Garbage  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

Unemployment Insurance  0.0196 $19,004  0.0314  $30,500  

Workman’s Compensation  0.1207 $117,009  0.0514  $50,000  

Liability Insurance  0.1031 $100,002  0.1717  $167,000  

IMRF  0.1764 $171,005  0.0226  $22,000  

Parks  0.0000 $19  0.0502  $48,780  

Social Security  0.0830 $80,504  0.2016  $196,000  

Levee/Flood Control  0.0629 $61,006  0.0000  $10   

Fire Protection  0.3522 $341,515  0.3540  $344,247  

Water Treatment  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

Chlorination  0.0000 $19  0.0000  $10  

TOTAL 1.3835 $1,341,412 $1.3964  $1,357,868 

 
When the tax levy is passed and the taxes are collected, the revenue generated by the 18 
individual funds can only be used for the respective purpose of each fund.  For instance, the 
Liability Insurance tax can only be used to pay for the city’s liability insurance.  Likewise, the 
Audit Tax can only be used to pay for the annual audit.  The only individual fund that can be 
expended or used for virtually any purpose is the Corporate Tax.  This tax is deposited in the 
General Fund.  The proposed levy maximizes the General Corporate tax as required to be 
eligible for state and county funding for the Dewey Avenue bridge project.   
 
As a result of a 2006 change in the PTELL law, any individual tax levy funds that have not been 
levied for three consecutive years can only be returned to the levy by referendum approval 

                                                 
1 The city does not levy for Street and Bridge since the overlapping townships levy this tax and reimburse the city.  The reimbursement is for the 
maintenance of streets that are located both in the city and in their townships. 

Page 37 of 73



5 of 5 

from the voters.  I am proposing to levy a minimum ($10 in some instances) in every fund to 
avoid losing any individual levies. 

 
Historical Comparison 
A summary of the tax levy collected, the percent change of the collection from the previous 
year, and the actual tax levy rate is shown in Table 2.    

 
Table 2.  Galena Property Tax Comparison 1995‐2016 

 
Year 

Collected 
Levy 

Collected 
Percent 
Change 

Levy 
Rate  

1995  $719,361 9.7%  2.37 

1996  $719,626 0.0%  2.17 

1997  $782,904 8.8%  2.02 

1998  $801,666 2.4%  1.87 

1999  $811,012 1.2%  1.73 

2000  $822,879 1.5%  1.76 

2001  $822,439 ‐0.1%  1.63 

2002  $843,539 2.6%  1.54 

2003  $848,003 0.5%  1.49 

2004  $880,679 3.9%  1.48 

2005  $921,318 4.6%  1.45 

2006  $978,284 6.2%  1.42 

2007  $1,006,075 2.8%  1.37 

2008  $1,046,599 4.0%  1.32 

20092  $1,301,301 24.3%  1.27 

2010  $1,323,108 1.7%  1.27 

2011  $1,365,624 3.2%  1.30 

2012  $1,378,790 1.0%  1.34 

2013  $1,378,879 0.0%  1.38 

2014  $1,319,506 ‐4.3%  1.36 

2015  $1,341,411 1.7%  1.38 

20163  $1,357,868 1.2%  1.39 

           
As shown in the table, Galena’s levy rate has decreased from a high of $2.37 in 1995 to a low in 
2009 and 2010 of $1.27.  The rate has increased only slightly over the last five years.   
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.   

                                                 
2 Value from expired TIF district returned to tax base. 
3 Based on the maximum levy. 

Page 38 of 73



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    December 9, 2015 

RE:    Deer Referendum 
 
 
At the November 23 council meeting, you considered a recommendation from the Deer 
Committee to place an advisory question regarding deer population management on the March 
15, 2016 election ballot.  The committee provided the question that they would prefer to see on 
the ballot.  You approved a motion requesting the staff to prepare a resolution to approve the 
referendum with options for the actual question.  
 
I am attaching two resolutions.  The first version includes the question as drafted by the Deer 
Committee.  The second version includes a question drafted by our staff.  The staff version makes 
the following assumptions in trying to clearly communicate the issue to the voters. 
 

 Deer would be counted inside the city limits annually 

 There would be a cost to the City of Galena to count deer 

 A determination would be made each year whether the deer are overpopulated based on  
Illinois Department of Natural Resources standards 

 If the deer are overpopulated, the City of Galena would spend public funds to reduce the 
deer population 

 The deer population would be reduced by lethal means 
 

The staff question clearly takes a different approach to the issue than the committee question.  
We realize the assumptions in the staff question may not be in line with the information that the 
committee and/or you wish to obtain from the referendum.   
 
We also confirmed with the County Clerk that the deadline for submitting the resolution to her 
office is December 28.  Since the next council meeting is the evening of December 28, the 
resolution must be adopted at the December 14 meeting.   
 
Finally, the County Clerk confirmed that the City of Galena may have a maximum of three 
questions on the March 15 ballot.  The council has already approved one question regarding the 
renewal of the flood control tax levy.  This means there could be no more than two questions 
regarding the deer issue.   

 

Page 39 of 73



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE SUBMISSION TO THE VOTERS OF THE CITY OF GALENA, 
COUNTY OF JO DAVIESS, ILLINOIS, AN ADVISORY QUESTION REGARDING  

DEER POPULATION MANAGEMENT IN THE CITY OF GALENA 

 

  WHEREAS, in 2013, the Galena City Council appointed a committee to study the deer 

population within the City of Galena, and  

  WHEREAS, in 2015, the Galena City Council appointed a new committee to study the 

deer population within the City of Galena, and  

  WHEREAS, on October 21, 2015, the deer committee voted to recommend the city 

council consider placing an advisory referendum question on the ballot of the March 15, 2016 

election, and  

  WHEREAS, the purpose of the advisory question would be to gauge the opinion of the 

community at‐large for an ongoing deer population management program, and  

  WHEREAS, the outcome of the referendum would be strictly advisory and would not 

obligate the city council to any particular action. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and the City Council of the City of 

Galena, County of Jo Daviess, as follows: 

At the General Election to be held within the City of Galena, Illinois, on March 15, 2016, the 

following proposition shall be submitted to the electors of said City: 

PROPOSITION 

 

“Should the city of galena adopt a deer population management program 

based on verifiable data, collected and reviewed on an annual basis? 

 

YES 
 

 

NO 
 

 

  Passed this ____day of ____________________, A.D., 2015. 

      AYES:        NAYS: 

________________________________ 
Terry Renner, Mayor 
 
ATTESTATION: 
 
  I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution passed by the City 
Council of Galena, Illinois, at a meeting held on ___________________, 2015 
____________________________________ 
Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Page 40 of 73



 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE SUBMISSION TO THE VOTERS OF THE CITY OF GALENA, 
COUNTY OF JO DAVIESS, ILLINOIS, AN ADVISORY QUESTION REGARDING 

 DEER POPULATION MANAGEMENT IN THE CITY OF GALENA 

 

  WHEREAS, in 2013, the Galena City Council appointed a committee to study the deer 

population within the City of Galena, and  

  WHEREAS, in 2015, the Galena City Council appointed a new committee to study the 

deer population within the City of Galena, and  

  WHEREAS, on October 21, 2015, the deer committee voted to recommend the city 

council consider placing an advisory referendum question on the ballot of the March 15, 2016 

election, and  

  WHEREAS, the purpose of the advisory question would be to gauge the opinion of the 

community at‐large for an ongoing deer population management program, and  

  WHEREAS, the outcome of the referendum would be strictly advisory and would not 

obligate the city council to any particular action. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and the City Council of the City of 

Galena, County of Jo Daviess, as follows: 

At the General Election to be held within the City of Galena, Illinois, on March 15, 2016, the 

following proposition shall be submitted to the electors of said City: 

PROPOSITION 

 

“Should the City of Galena spend public funds to annually count the number of 

deer in the city limits, and if those counts determine that deer are 

overpopulated by Illinois Department of Natural Resources standards, should 

the City of Galena spend public funds to annually reduce the deer population 

by lethal means?” 

 

 

YES 

 

 

 

NO 

 

 

 

 

   

   

Page 41 of 73



Passed this ____day of ____________________, A.D., 2015. 

 

      AYES:        NAYS: 

 

________________________________ 

Terry Renner, Mayor 

 

ATTESTATION: 

 

  I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution passed by the City 

Council of Galena, Illinois, at a meeting held on ___________________, 2015 

 

____________________________________ 

Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

   

Page 42 of 73



1

Mark Moran

From: William Grosshans <wjgrosshans@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, December 03, 2015 10:40 AM
To: Mark Moran; Pam Bernstein; jkieffer@galenacitycouncil.com; 

cfach@galenacitycouncil.com; todd lincoln; Jerry Westemeier; saphire1957
@hotmail.com

Cc: John Cox
Subject: Fwd: This is what I want to send to the city council. Please read and respond.

[Mark--please provide a copy of this email to the mayor.  Also, I respectfully ask that you print a hard copy for 
each city council member.  Thank you] 
 

To members of the Galena City Council: 
  
I respectfully recommend that you seriously consider the following language for the referendum on deer in the 
city limits you recently agreed needs to be on the Spring 2016 ballot: 
  
"Should the city of Galena taxpayers fund an annual deer management program (to include an annual aerial 
count of the number of deer in and around the city, baiting, killing of a yet to be determined number of animals 
in the city limits, dressing, transporting the carcass to meat processors, and providing the meat to local food 
pantries).  No cost estimates are yet available; 
however, a similar program in the Galena Territories cost an estimated $15,000 annually for the killing of up to 
100 deer".   
  
The voters need a clear and well defined wording of the referendum in order to make a knowledgeable and 
intelligent decision on what they are voting for or against.  There needs to be some idea of the cost of such a 
program and there definitely needs to be some definition of "deer management program".  Since the 2015 Deer 
Committee will not be finished with their work and recommendations before the December 28 deadline to get a 
referendum on the ballot, the wording cannot be open ended and open to voter interpetation of what is a "deer 
management proigram", e.g:  first, we do not even know the size of the deer herd in Galena; second, there are a 
variety of deer culling methods to be explored, including, but not limited to: sterilization, capture and 
relocation, killing with a rifle, killing with a bow and arrow, etc.; third, there needs to be some cost estimate to 
the voters on the use of their tax dollars, similar to the referendum on the building of a new school a few years 
ago. 
  
Any open ended language such as was proposed by the Deer Committee is left to interpetation (what is a deer 
management program; what is the cost; who will pay; how will it be implemented, etc) and will only continue to 
polarize this community.  The referendum question must be definitive, not emotional.     
  
  
 

Page 43 of 73



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    December 9, 2015 

RE:    Cobblestone Dedication 
 
 
During the past year, Cobblestone Crossing developer, Don Wienen, has been working to complete 
the housing and infrastructure in the first phase of the subdivision.  Considerable progress has 
been made and Wienen is now requesting the City accept ownership of the infrastructure.   
 
On December 2, 2015, Wienen signed a bill of sale to formally convey the infrastructure to the 
City.  All aspects of the streets, street lighting, storm sewers, water supply system, and sanitary 
sewer system are included in the conveyance.  The final step in accepting the conveyance is to 
adopt an ordinance.  The ordinance is attached for your consideration.   
 
In the fall of 2014, the City developed the following punch list of infrastructure that needed to be 
completed prior to acceptance by the City.   
 

1. Install missing street light at west end of Cobblestone Boulevard. 
 
2. Install electrical cable to street lights and connect to metered electrical supply. 

 
3. Install three storm water ditch checks at locations as indicated on drawing G10 of the 

approved subdivision plans.    
 

4. Install additional rip‐rap to storm sewer outlets as indicated on drawing G10.   
 

5. Install remainder of sidewalk on the north side of Cobblestone Boulevard. 
 

6. Prepare a final dedication plat showing the as‐built locations of all the public utilities, 
easements, and right‐of‐ways.   

 
City Engineer, Andy Lewis, confirms that each item on the punch list has been completed.  The 
final plat of dedication is included as an attachment to the ordinance accepting ownership by the 
City.  I recommend you approve the ordinance to accept the Cobblestone Crossing infrastructure. 
 

 

Page 44 of 73



 
Ordinance #0‐15‐ 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO ACCEPT OWNERSHIP BY DEDICATION OF THE PUBLIC STREETS, 
SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM, WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM, AND STORM WATER 
SYSTEM IN THE COBBLESTONE CROSSING SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF GALENA 

 

 
      WHEREAS, Don Wienen, (the “Developer”) is the owner in fee simple of 
the property comprising the Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision, which tract is more 
particularly described in the final subdivision plat for said subdivision which was 
recorded in the Jo Daviess County Recorder’s Office in Plan Hold D #317, as document 
No. 315483, on October 21, 2004 and the Plat of Dedication, dated November 16, 2015; 
and  
 
      WHEREAS, the Developer has completed the construction and 
installation of Phase 1 of the roadway, including Cobblestone Boulevard from its 
westerly beginning to the intersection with Woodland Court, and Country View Court in 
the Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision; and  
 
      WHEREAS, the Developer has completed the construction and 
installation of the public lighting, sanitary sewerage system, potable public water 
distribution system, and the storm sewerage system in said subdivision and the same 
have been inspected by the City Engineer or his designee and have been found to have 
been constructed and installed in compliance with the requirements of the City of 
Galena, Illinois (the “City”) Subdivision Ordinance and other applicable codes and 
ordinances of the City; and  
 
      WHEREAS, the Developer has made and delivered to the City the 
required Bill of Sale (attached hereto and made part hereof as “Exhibit A”); and  
 
      WHEREAS, it is necessary and appropriate that the City Council accept 
by dedication the ownership of the public infrastructure capital improvements 
described above for the Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision. 
 

             NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, as follows: 
 
              SECTION I:  The recitals contained above in the preamble of this 
Ordinance are hereby incorporated herein by reference, the same if set forth in the 
Section of this Ordinance verbatim, as findings of the City Council of the City of Galena, 
Illinois. 
 
               

Page 45 of 73



               SECTION II:  The City hereby accepts the ownership by dedication of the 
street improvements for Cobblestone Crossing from its westerly beginning to the 
intersection with Woodland Court, and Country View Court in the Cobblestone 
Subdivision, being the public streets presently constructed and installed in the said 
subdivision, which street was constructed at the direction of the City by the Developer 
in the street easement provided therefore which easement is depicted on and was 
created by the Plat of Dedication for the Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision, dated 
November 16, 2015 (attached hereto and made part hereof as “Exhibit B”).  Said public 
street pavement, curb and gutter, and lighting has been constructed and installed in 
accordance with the codes and ordinances of the City pertaining thereto. 
 
              SECTION III:  The City hereby accepts by dedication the storm sewers 
installed in the Cobblestone Subdivision for the purpose of the collection, transport and 
flow of surface waters in said subdivision, which storm sewers have been installed and 
constructed in the Cobblestone Crossing Boulevard and Country View Court right‐of‐way 
as depicted on the Plat of Dedication for the Cobblestone Crossing Subdivision, dated 
November 16, 2015.  Said storm sewers having been constructed and installed in 
accordance with the codes and ordinances of the City pertaining thereto. 
 
              SECTION IV:   The City hereby accepts the ownership by dedication and 
the maintenance responsibility for the sanitary sewerage system constructed and 
installed in the Cobblestone Subdivision for the collection, transport and treatment of 
sewerage, which sewerage system was installed and constructed at the direction of the 
City by the Developer, and was installed in the Cobblestone Boulevard and Country View 
Court right‐of‐way as depicted on the Plat of Dedication for the Cobblestone Crossing 
Subdivision, dated November 16, 2015, with the exception of those lateral pipes, and 
any associated valves, which transport the sewerage of a single building into a common 
sewerage main, commonly known as and referred to as a “residential service”.   
 
              SECTION V:  The City hereby accepts the ownership by dedication and 
the maintenance responsibility for the potable water distribution system constructed 
and installed in the Cobblestone Subdivision for the transport of potable water, which 
potable water system was installed and constructed at the direction of the City by the 
Developer, and was installed in the Cobblestone Boulevard and Country View Court 
right‐of‐way as depicted on the Plat of Dedication for the Cobblestone Crossing 
Subdivision, dated November 16, 2015, with the exception of those lateral pipes, and 
any associated valves, which transport the potable water of a single building into a 
common water main, commonly known as and referred to as a “residential service”.   
 
              SECTION VI:   All ordinances or resolutions, or parts of ordinances or 
resolutions, in conflict herewith, to the extent of such conflict, are hereby repealed. 
 
              SECTION VII:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its passage and approval, as provided by law. 

Page 46 of 73



 
SECTION VIII:  Passed on this ___ day of _______________, A.D., 2015, 

in open Council. 
 
       
AYES:          NAYS: 
                                                  ____________________________________ 
                                                  TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
_________________________________________ 
MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 

Page 47 of 73



Page 48 of 73



Page 49 of 73



34
1.

82
'

640.88'

L=135.37,R=215.63

L=100.19,R=165.63

322.84'

322.84'

65
5.

85
'

43
1.

57
'

22
5.

23
'

42
.1

4'
12

2.
86

'

270.31'

129.91'

159.04'

103.88'

106.64'

164.27'
277.96'

13
1.

49
'

12
7.

92
'

214.43'

226.67'
L=2

6
1.

8
0

,
R

=50.00

L=261.8
0,

R
=

5
0 .

0 0

L=261.80,R=50.
0

0

669.99'

19
4.

83
'

11
0.

38
'

30
1.

57
'

31
9.

95
'

67.54'

64.56'

20
.5

7'
20

.5
7'

96
.6

8'

30
7.

79
'

28
6.

47
'

14
9.

17
'

88
.6

6'

106.89'

23
4.

85
'

12
0.

00
'

596.78'

63.43'844.11'

94.46'

398.43'

L=163.7
8,

R

=432.
61

10.00'

L=11
6.0

3,
R

=493
.3

0

482.09'

L=
16

9.
19

,
R

=470.6
1

10
1.

22
'

22
7.

51
'

61
.8

4'
72

.4
5'

80
.6

3'

5.63

322.84'

322.84' 6656611611==1 RR= RRRR 99, 9911911 00.1 00000
100110

=1=1====L==L=L=L=L=LLLLLLL

6161616
0.6 0.

7070
470
47

=4=4

R

=4

R

=

RRR
19

,
191919

69
.1

696969
=1

6
=1 L=
1

L=L=LL

111010100

11616161
2

6
2.

6
32

432
43

==43

R

=

R

=

R
8,

78
3.7

8
3.

163
16

L=16
L

398.43'

L

L
=

2
61

.8

0,R=50.00

L
=

5
9

6
.0

8
,

R
=

3
2

7
9

.3
7

L
=

2
5

9
.4

1,
R

=
3

3
3

9
.3

7

L=
2

7
4.

3
3,

R
=

3
6

5
.0

0

P
LO

T
 D

A
T

E
:

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
B

Y

S
H

E
E

T

F
IL

E
 N

O
.

12
/9

/1
5,

  P
:\6

50
0s

\6
58

0s
\6

58
4\

06
58

40
04

\C
A

D
D

\C
3D

\0
65

84
00

4 
D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
M

ap
.d

w
g

--
--

C
O

B
B

LE
S

T
O

N
E

 C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
 A

T
 G

A
LE

N
A

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

G
A

LE
N

A
, I

L

D
S

W
 IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

S

P
LA

T
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 D

E
D

IC
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 T
O

 T
H

E
 C

IT
Y

 
.

.
.

.
.

.

.
.

.

. . .

S
JS

IN
IT

11
-1

6-
20

15

06
58

40
04

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

.:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 D
A

T
E

:

S
C

A
LE

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

1"
=

 1
00

'

F
.B

. :
.

.
.

.

0
10

0'
20

0'

56
3-

58
2-

39
73

  1
-8

88
-8

69
-1

21
4 

 F
ax

: 5
63

-5
82

-4
02

0
40

0 
Ic

e 
H

ar
bo

r 
D

riv
e 

D
ub

uq
ue

, I
A

 5
20

01

W
eb

 A
dd

re
ss

: w
w

w
.m

sa
-p

s.
co

m
©

 M
S

A
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

B
LO

C
K

 2

B
LO

C
K

 3
B

LO
C

K
 4

BLOCK 1

B
LO

C
K

 5

B
LO

C
K

 6

O
U

T
LO

T
 1

S
T

R
E

E
T

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
, W

A
T

E
R

 M
A

IN
, S

T
O

R
M

 A
N

D
S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

 S
E

W
E

R
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 T
O

 B
E

 D
E

D
IC

A
T

E
D

S
T

O
R

M
 A

N
D

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
T

O
 B

E
 D

E
D

IC
A

T
E

D

W
A

T
E

R
 M

A
IN

, S
T

O
R

M
 A

N
D

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 T

O
 B

E
 D

E
D

IC
A

T
E

D

C
O

B
B

LE
S

T
O

N
E

 C
R

O
S

S
IN

G
 A

T
 G

A
LE

N
A

 -
 P

LA
T

 O
F

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 T

O
 B

E
 D

E
D

IC
A

T
E

D
 T

O
 T

H
E

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
 G

A
LE

N
A

, D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

, 2
01

5

B
LO

C
K

 2
B

LO
C

K
 3

B
LO

C
K

 4

F
O

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

 O
F

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
N

D
 B

E
A

R
IN

G
S

 O
F

 T
H

E
 B

LO
C

K
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

IE
S

 S
E

E
 T

H
E

 F
IN

A
L 

P
LA

T
 F

IL
E

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

C
O

R
D

 IN
 P

LA
N

 H
O

LD
D

 A
T

 N
U

M
B

E
R

 3
17

 IN
 T

H
E

 J
O

 D
A

V
IE

S
S

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
E

C
O

R
D

E
R

'S
 O

F
F

IC
E

.

COBBLESTONE

B
O

U
LE

V
A

R
D

COUNTRY VIEW COURT

WOODLAND COURT

ROLLING HILL COURT

"E
X

H
IB

IT
 B

"

Page 50 of 73



CHAPTER 151: GALENA HISTORIC 
PRESERVATION ORDINANCE 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

§ 151.01 DESIGNATED AREAS; MAP. 

(A) All areas, places, buildings, structures, works of art and other objects individually and 
collectively, whether owned or controlled privately or by any public body located within that 
part of the city commonly described as the Galena Historic District, as defined below, or a 
property otherwise designated as a local Landmark, are hereby designated as areas, places, 
buildings, structures, works of art or other objects having a special historical, architectural, 
community or aesthetic interest and value. 

(B) A map of said area designating the boundaries of said area shall at all times be kept at City 
Hall, Galena, Illinois and shall be designated as “Map of Galena Historic District.” 

(C) A map identifying all designated Landmarks shall at all times be kept at City Hall, Galena, 
Illinois. 

§ 151.02 DESIGNATED AREAS TO RETAIN ORIGINAL EXTERIOR 
APPEARANCE. 

(A) All property within the Galena Historic District and local Landmarks shall retain the exterior 
appearance of the period in which it was built. Any alterations or repairs to existing structures 
shall be designed and constructed with essentially the same exterior appearances as the original 
structure. New construction within the Galena Historic District shall be appropriate based upon 
surrounding structures, location and applicable Galena Historic District standards. 

(B) No alteration, repair or other work shall be performed to the interior of any structure that 
may ultimately affect the materials, features, appearance or integrity of the exterior of the 
structure. 

§ 151.03 PERMIT REQUIRED FOR WORK. 

(A) No construction, alteration, demolition, or modification of any real estate or improvements 
thereon within the area officially designated in §150.20 shall be started, commenced, undertaken 
or done without first complying with the terms of this Galena Historic Preservation Ordinance. 

(B) Any Certificate of Appropriateness issued by the City to perform work shall remain valid 
only if the applicable project is commenced within eighteen months of the issuance of such 
certificate, and completed within four years of the issuance of such certificate or permit.  All 

Page 51 of 73



certificates and permits issued prior to January 1, 2015 shall remain valid until December 31, 
2019. 

§ 151.20 HISTORIC DISTRICT BOUNDARIES, LANDMARKS AND 
ZONING. 

(A) The boundaries of the Galena Historic District are described as follows: 
______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ as more 
particularly indicated on the Map of Galena Historic District and depicted on the Official Zoning 
Map.  All properties or structures designated as Landmarks shall be treated as if such properties 
or structures are within the Galena Historic District. 

(B) The following properties are deemed Landmarks: 

Ryan Mansion 11373 U.S. Highway 20 

Bob Buman 1024 Hill Street 

The legal descriptions that attach to the common addresses set forth above as of the date of the 
passage of this ordinance are incorporated into the common address by reference. 

(C) All zoning ordinances and regulations shall apply within the Galena Historic District as 
defined in §§ 154.110 through 154.167 of this chapter. 

§ 151.21 STANDARDS. 

(A) A property will be used as it was historically or be given a new use that requires minimal 
change to its distinctive materials, features, spaces, and spatial relationships.  
 
(B) The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of 
distinctive materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that characterize a 
property will be avoided.  
 
(C) Each property will be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes 
that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or 
elements from other historic properties, will not be undertaken.  
 
(D) Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in their own right will be 
retained and preserved.  
 
(E) Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property will be preserved.  
 
(F) Deteriorated historic features will be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of 
deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature will match the old in 

Page 52 of 73



design, color, texture, and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features will be 
substantiated by documentary and physical evidence.  
 
(G) Chemical or physical treatments, if appropriate, will be undertaken using the gentlest means 
possible. Treatments that cause damage to historic materials will not be used.  
 
(H) Archeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. If such resources must be 
disturbed, mitigation measures will be undertaken.  
 
(I) New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic 
materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new work shall 
be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, 
scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its environment.  
 
(J) New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in a such a manner 
that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its 
environment would be unimpaired.  

(K) The quality of materials and craftsmanship used in a rehabilitation project must be 
commensurate with the quality of materials and craftsmanship of the historic building in 
question. Certain treatments, if improperly applied, or certain materials by their physical 
properties, may cause or accelerate physical deterioration of historic buildings. Inappropriate 
physical treatments include, but are not limited to: improper tuckpointing techniques; improper 
exterior masonry cleaning methods; or improper introduction of insulation if damage to historic 
fabric would result. In almost all situations, use of these materials and treatments will result in 
denial of certification. For further information on appropriate and inappropriate rehabilitation 
treatments, owners are to consult the Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings published 
by the National Park Service or contact the City Building Department. `Preservation Briefs' and 
additional technical information to help property owners formulate plans for the rehabilitation, 
preservation and continued use of historic properties consistent with the intent of the Secretary's 
Standards for Rehabilitation are available from the State Historic Preservation Officer, the 
National Park Service regional offices and the City Building Department. Owners are 
responsible for procuring this material as part of property planning for a certified rehabilitation. 

§ 151.22 DESIGN GUIDELINES. 

(A) Height. The height of any proposed alteration or construction shall be compatible with the 
style and character of the subject building and with surrounding structures in the Galena Historic 
District. 

(B) Relationship of building masses and spaces. The relationship of a structure within the Galena 
Historic District to the open space between and adjoining structures should be compatible. 

(C) Scale. The scale of the structure after alteration, construction, or partial demolition should be 
compatible with its predominant architectural style and character and with the surrounding 
structures in the Galena Historic District contiguous thereto. 

Page 53 of 73



(D) Proportions of windows and doors. The proportions and relationships between windows and 
doors should be compatible with the architectural style and character of the building or structure. 

(E) Roof shape. The design of the roof, facia, and cornice should be compatible with the 
architectural style and character of the building or structure. 

(F) Landscaping. Landscaping should be compatible with the architectural character and 
appearance of the building or structure. 

(G) Directional expression. Facades in historic districts should blend with other structures with 
regard to directional expression. Structures in the Galena Historic District should be compatible 
with the dominant horizontal or vertical expression of surrounding buildings or structures. The 
directional expression of a building or structure after alteration, construction, or partial 
demolition should be compatible with its original architectural style and character. 

(H) Architectural details. Architectural details including types of materials, colors, and textures 
should be treated so as to make the building or structure compatible with its original architectural 
style and character of the building or structure within the Galena Historic District. 

(I) New structures. New structures in the Galena Historic District shall be compatible with the 
architectural styles and designs within the Galena Historic District such that the new structures 
shall not detract from or interfere with the historical structures. 

§ 151.23 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS; SCOPE AND 
EXEMPTIONS. 

(A) Certificate required. Unless expressly exempted in this subchapter, no permits for new 
construction, demolition, alteration, repair, signage, or any other physical modifications of a 
property within the Galena Historic District may be issued by the city without the prior or 
simultaneous issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness in accordance with the procedures 
specified in this subchapter. 

(B) Scope. A certificate of appropriateness means a certificate issued by the Building Official 
after review and recommendation by the GHPC indicating that new construction, alteration, or 
demolition within the Galena Historic District is in accordance with the standards and 
requirements of this Galena Historic Preservation Ordinance. 

(C) Definitions. For the purpose of this subchapter, the following definitions shall apply unless 
the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning. 

ALTERATION. Any act or process that changes one or more features of a structure or property. 

ADDITION. Any act or process which changes one or more of the exterior architectural features 
of a structure designated for preservation by adding to, joining with or increasing the size 
capacity of the structure. 

Page 54 of 73



BUILDING. Any structure created for the support, shelter or enclosure of persons, animals or 
property of any kind and which is permanently affixed to the land. 

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS. A certificate from the Building Official after 
review by the Galena Historic Preservation Commission authorizing plans for alterations, 
construction, removal or demolition of a Landmark or site within the Galena Historic District. 

CONSTRUCTION. The act of adding to an existing structure or the erection of a new principal 
or accessory structure on a lot or property. 

COUNCIL. The Galena City Council. 

DEMOLITION. Any act or process that destroys in part or whole a landmark or site within the 
Galena Historic District. 

GALENA HISTORIC DISTRICT. The area designated as the Galena Historic District and 
adopted by ordinance by the city.  

IMPROVEMENT. Any building, structure, fence, gate, wall, walkway, parking facility, light 
fixture, bench, fountain, sign, work of art, earth work, or other man-made object constituting a 
physical betterment of real property. 

OWNER OF RECORD. The person, corporation, or other legal entity listed as the owner on the 
records of the County Recorder of Deeds. 

REHABILITATION. The process of returning a property to a state of utility, through repair or 
alteration, which makes possible an efficient contemporary use while preserving those portions 
and features of the property which are significant to its historic, architectural and cultural values. 

REMOVAL. Any relocation of a structure on its site or to another site. 

RESTORATION. The act or process of accurately depicting the form, features and character of a 
property as it appeared at a particular period of time by means of the removal of features from 
other periods in its history and reconstruction of missing features from the restoration period. 
The limited and sensitive upgrading of mechanical, electrical and plumbing systems and other 
code-required work to make properties functional is appropriate within the restoration project. 

STRUCTURE. Anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires permanent or 
temporary location on or in the ground, including, but without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, buildings, fences, retaining walls, gazebos, advertising signs, billboards, backstops for 
tennis courts, radio and television antennae, including supporting towers, swimming pools, 
satellite dishes, solar panels and wind generation. 

(D) Exemptions. A Certificate of Appropriateness shall not be required in connection with: 

Page 55 of 73



(1) Applications for permits not involving any alteration to the exterior features of a structure, 
except as set forth in 151.02(B) above. 

(2) Permits necessary for compliance with a lawful order of the city, including any permit 
necessary to correct an immediate health or safety problem. 

§ 151.24 GALENA HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION (GHPC). 

(A) Establishment. There is hereby created a Galena Historic Preservation Commission (GHPC) 
for the purposes of carrying out the objectives and provisions enumerated in this section and to 
review and advise the Building Official on site plans and construction proposals in the Historic 
District and to review and advise the Building Official on the issuance of certificates of 
appropriateness in the Historic District. 

(B) Powers and duties. The GHPC shall: 

(1) Assist and advise the Building Official, the City Council, other city officials and departments 
and county and state agencies as may be necessary in matters involving the Galena Historic 
District and sites, structures and improvements therein. 

(2) Advise owners of property in the Galena Historic District on methods of preservation as per 
the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation and Illustrated Guidelines for 
Rehabilitating Historic Buildings. 

(3) Upon request, review and make recommendations to the Building Official regarding 
variations and amendments in the Galena Historic District. 

(4) Promote the preservation of the historic sites, improvements and structures in the Galena 
Historic District and make recommendations to the City Council on methods to accomplish 
same. 

(5) Assist the Building Official in maintaining an ongoing survey of potential local landmarks 
and adopt procedures to designate them. 

(C) Composition of the GHPC. The GHPC shall consist of at least five members nominated by 
the Mayor and appointed by the City Council. All members shall be qualified by training, 
education, experience or activity in historic preservation matters generally and with the Galena 
Historic District specifically. The term of service of members of the GHPC shall be two years. 
Any vacancies shall be filled by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City Council, for the 
unexpired term. Members may be removed by the City Council for any reason.  Any member not 
nominated by the Mayor may be removed by the Mayor for any reason. One of the members of 
the GHPC shall be designated by the Mayor as chairperson and shall hold the office until a 
successor is appointed. A quorum shall be one more than half of the total members of the GHPC. 
Decisions shall be by majority vote of the members present. A member of the GHPC may not 
vote on a matter involving property in the Galena Historic District in which the member has a 
legal or equitable ownership interest. 

Page 56 of 73



(D) Meetings. The GHPC shall meet once a month year round. Written notice must be given to 
all applicants with the notice to state time and place of the meeting in which their application 
will be reviewed by the GHPC. 

(1) Application. Each person intending a) to demolish a structure larger than 100 square feet in 
floor area and within the Galena Historic District, b) to perform new construction, alterations or 
repairs to existing structures, or c) perform entirely new construction within the Galena Historic 
District shall file a certificate of appropriateness application with the Building Official or Board 
Secretary. The application shall be on a form provided by the city. 

(2) Notice of demolition request. An application for a certificate of appropriateness to demolish a 
structure larger than 100 square feet in ground area and within the Galena Historic District shall 
require a public notice of the meeting to be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
city with the notice to state the time and place of the meeting, the purpose of the meeting and a 
brief description of property or properties under consideration at such meeting. The notice shall 
be published at least 15 but not more than 30 days prior to the hearing. Notice shall also be 
mailed at least 15 but not more than 30 days before the date of the hearing to all owners of 
property within 250 feet excluding public streets, roads or alleys, of the property affected by the 
demolition request. 

(3) Filing fee required. An application for a Certificate of Appropriateness shall be accompanied 
by a filing fee as established by the City Council. 

(4) Public meetings. All meetings shall be open to the public at which time a public hearing will 
be held regarding the properties under consideration. Consistent with city ordinances and state 
statutes the Galena Historic Preservation Commission may adopt rules and regulations to govern 
the procedures of such meetings and the proper administration and enforcement of its duties 
pursuant to this section. 

(5) Building Official Discretion.  The Building Official is not required to bring any project before 
the GHPC.  

§ 151.25 APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS; REVIEW AND APPROVAL. 

(A) Application. Prior to requesting a building permit, an applicant in the Galena Historic 
District shall submit an application for a certificate of appropriateness on a form provided by the 
city. The application shall include, when appropriate, but not be limited to a site plan, drawn to 
scale showing location of proposed construction, floor plan showing existing conditions and 
proposed changes, elevations - all exterior views, current photographs showing all elevations of 
the building and existing conditions, historic photographs if available, a list of materials 
including product sources and color description. 

(B) Coordination. If a site plan and/or zoning approval is required pursuant to §§ 154.245 
through 154.248 of this chapter, the review and approval process for the Certificate of 
Appropriateness shall be coordinated to the maximum extent possible, with the review and 

Page 57 of 73



approval process for the site plan and/or zoning application so that all aspects of the proposed 
activity are considered at one time by both the GHPC and the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

(C) Submission, review and approval. 

(1) Upon receipt of an application for a certificate of appropriateness, the Building Official shall 
determine if the proposed construction is a major or minor alteration.  Minor alteration should be 
approved without submission to the GHPC. 

(a) Types and kinds of improvements to be considered minor: 

1. Maintenance, cleaning and minor repair. 

2. Application or use of exterior materials of the same kind, type, color, or texture already in use 
on that structure which substantially replaces existing materials of the same type, color, texture 
and appearance. This provision applies to roofing as well as siding. 

 (b) Types and kinds of improvements considered major:  

1. Construction of a new building or auxiliary structure. 

2. Any addition to or alteration of an existing structure which increases the square footage in that 
structure or otherwise alters its size, height, contour, or outline. 

3. Change or alteration of a structures architectural style, color or features. 

4. Alteration of a roof line. 

5. Demolition of any structure or portion of a structure. 

6. Replacement or addition of windows, doors or fencing. 

For major alterations, the application for Certificate of Appropriateness should be submitted to 
the GHPC for review in accordance with this ordinance. The GHPC shall return its decision to 
the Building Official and Board Secretary as soon as practical, but in no event more than 60 days 
following receipt of the application, unless the applicant agrees to an extension of such time 
period. 

(2) The Building Official shall grant the certificate, deny the certificate, or grant the certificate 
with conditions. 

(3) If the application is approved without conditions a Certificate of Appropriateness shall be 
issued. 

(4) If the application is approved with conditions, the Building Official shall notify the applicant 
in writing and shall specify the conditions to be imposed and the reasons therefore in light of the 

Page 58 of 73



standards and criteria of the Galena Historic District. If the applicant accepts all of the conditions 
or takes no other action, such approval, with conditions, shall be effective and a certificate of 
appropriateness shall issue. If the applicant notifies the Building Official in writing within 30 
days of the date of such approval with conditions of his refusal to accept all of the conditions, the 
application shall be deemed to be denied. 

(5) If the certificate is denied, the Building Official shall notify the applicant in writing and shall 
specify the particulars in which the application is inconsistent with the standards and criteria of 
the Galena Historic District. 

(6) Any person aggrieved by a ruling of the GHPC or the Building Official may appeal the 
decision to the City Council. 

(D) Appeals and review. 

(1) Timing of appeal. Such appeal shall be undertaken within 30 days to the City Council by 
filing with the GHPC Secretary a notice of appeal specifying the ground thereof, together with 
such plats and exhibits as are reasonably necessary. Such appeals shall be made on forms 
provided by the Building Official. The GHPC Secretary shall forthwith transmit to the Building 
Official all of the papers constituting the record upon which the action appealed was taken. 

(2) Powers of the City Council. The City Council may reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may 
modify or amend the order, requirement, decision, or determination appealed from, to the extent 
and in the manner that the City Council may decide to be fitting and proper on the premises and 
to that end the City Council shall also have all the powers of the officer from whom the appeal 
was taken. 

(3) Reversal of an order. The concurring vote of a majority of the City Council shall be 
necessary to reverse any order, requirement, decision, or determination of the Building Official 
or the GHPC.  

§ 151.26 STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES FOR REVIEW PROCESS. 

(A) In reviewing an application for a certificate of appropriateness for the erection, construction, 
reconstruction, remodeling, exterior alteration, or restoration of a building or structure, the 
GHPC shall consider the following: 

(1) The exterior architectural features, including all signs, which are subject to public view from 
a public street, way or place; 

(2) The general design, arrangement, texture, material, color and fenestration of the building or 
structure and the relation of such factors to similar features of buildings or structures in the 
immediate vicinity within the Galena Historic District; 

(3) The extent to which the building or structure would be harmonious with or architecturally 
incompatible with the Galena Historic District; 

Page 59 of 73



(4) The extent to which the building or structure will preserve or protect the Galena Historic 
District; 

(5) The extent to which the building or structure will promote the general welfare of the city and 
all citizens by the preservation and protection of historic places, areas of historic interest in the 
city and the Galena Historic District. 

(6) The extent to which the preservation and protection will promote the general welfare by 
maintaining and increasing real estate values, generating business creating new positions, 
attracting tourists, attracting new residents, encouraging study and interest in American history, 
stimulating interest and study in architecture and design, educating citizens in American culture 
and heritage, and making the city a more attractive and desirable place in which to visit and live. 

(7) Photographs shall be used whenever possible to establish the true historic appearance of a 
structure. 

(B) Due to the permanent and irreversible nature of demolition, an application for a certificate of 
appropriateness to demolish a building or structure should be reviewed by the Building Official 
and GHPC using the strictest of scrutiny, and should only be granted after considering the 
following: 

(1) Is the building of such architectural or historic interest that its removal would be a detriment 
to the public interest? 

(2) Is the building of such old and unusual or uncommon design, texture, and material that it 
could not be reproduced or reproduced only with great difficulty? 

(3) Would retention of the building help preserve and protect an historical place or the Galena 
Historic District of the city? 

(4) Would retention of the building promote the general welfare by maintaining and increasing 
real estate values generating business, creating new positions, attracting tourists, attracting new 
residents, encouraging study and interest in American history, stimulating interest and study in 
architecture and design, educating citizens in American culture and heritage, and making the city 
a more attractive and desirable place in which to live? 

(5) Would demolition of the building or structure adversely affect the cohesiveness and historical 
significance of the Galena Historic District as a whole? 

(C) In reviewing an application for a Certificate of Appropriateness to relocate a building or 
structure, the Building Official and GHPC shall consider the following: 

(1) Would the proposed relocation have a detrimental effect on the structural soundness of the 
building or structure? 

Page 60 of 73



(2) Would the proposed relocation have a detrimental effect on the historical aspects of other 
structures and buildings in the Galena Historic District? 

(3) Would relocation provide new surroundings that would be harmonious with or incongruous 
to the historical and architectural aspects of the structure or building? 

(4) Would relocation of the building help preserve and protect an historic place or area of historic 
interest in the city? 

(5) Would relocation of the building promote the general welfare by maintaining and increasing 
real estate values generating business, creating new positions, attracting tourists, attracting new 
residents, encouraging study and interest in American history, stimulating interest and study in 
architecture and design, educating citizens in American culture and heritage, and making the city 
a more attractive and desirable place in which to visit and live? 

§ 151.30 LANDMARK DESIGNATION CRITERIA. 

(A) Nominations shall be made to the Galena Historic Preservation Commission on a form 
provided by the Commission. A filing fee may be required. Illinois enabling legislation does not 
require owner consent for local designations. Designation should be based on meeting the criteria 
exclusively. 

(B) The Commission shall, upon investigation as it deems necessary, make a determination as to 
whether a property, structure or area possesses the integrity of design, workmanship, materials, 
location, setting and feeling and meets one or more of the following criteria: 

(i) Significant value as part of the historic, heritage or cultural characteristics of the community, 
county, state or nation; 

(ii) Its identification with a person or persons who significantly contributed to the development 
of the community, county, state or country; 

(iii) Representative of the distinguishing characteristics of architecture inherently valuable for 
the study of a period, type, method of construction or use of indigenous materials; 

(iv) Notable work of a master builder, designer, architect or artist whose individual work has 
influenced the development of the community, county, state or country. 

(v) Its unique location or singular physical characteristics that make it an established or familiar 
visual feature; 

(vi) Its character as a particularly fine or unique example of a utilitarian structure, including but 
not limited to: farmhouses, gas stations or other commercial structures, with a high level of 
integrity or architectural significance; 

Page 61 of 73



(vii) Area that has yielded or may be likely to yield, information important in history or 
prehistory.  

§ 151.31 LANDMARK DESIGNATION PROCEDURES. 

The Commission shall schedule a public hearing for each Landmark designation except for those 
set forth in Section 151.20 (B). 

(1) Notice of date, time, place and purpose of the public hearing shall be sent by mail to owner(s) 
of record and to the nominator(s) as well as to the adjoining property owners, not less than 15 
nor more than 30 days prior to the date of the hearing. A public hearing notice also shall be 
published in a newspaper having general circulation in the city. The notice shall state the location 
of the property or properties and the purpose of the public hearing. 

(2) During the public hearing the Commission shall review and evaluate the nomination 
according to the criteria established by ordinance. 

(3) The Commission shall send all approved nominations to the City Council for final approval 
and incorporation into this Historic Preservation ordinance.  

(4) A Certificate of Appropriateness shall be required for alterations, construction, removal or 
demolition or a proposed landmark from the date when the nomination form is presented to the 
Commission until the final disposition of the request.  

 (5) Buildings designated as Historic Landmarks shall be subject to issuance of Certificate of 
Appropriateness, just as for any building in the Galena Historic District. 

@151.40 DUTY TO INFORM. 

All Sellers, or their agents, of real property within the Galena Historic District or with a 
Landmark designation shall notify all potential purchasers of such property in writing prior to the 
execution of any written contract to purchase the applicable property of the existence and 
application of this Historic Preservation Ordinance to that property.  

@ 151.50 DEMOLITION BY NEGLECT. 

All structures located in the Galena Historic District or with Landmark designation shall be 
preserved by their owner against decay, rot, deterioration, and kept free of certain structural 
defects to prevent demolition or partial demolition caused by the neglect of said structure. 

(A) In the event a property or structure within the Historic District or with a Landmark 
designation fails to be preserved in accordance with this section, the Building Official shall 
notify the owner of record of the applicable property or structure, such notice to include the 
details of the violation of this section.   

Page 62 of 73



(B) The owner of the applicable property shall have one year to commence efforts to remedy the 
situation specified by the Building Inspector, and four years to complete the remedial efforts 
unless a shorter period is necessitated by the condition of the building.  In the event remedial 
efforts are not commenced within one year, or satisfactory progress is not being made in the 
opinion of the Building Official over the course of four years, the Building Official shall submit 
the applicable property to the GHPC for review and recommendation.   

(C) The GHPC can recommend any of the following to the Building Official or to City Council, 
as applicable: 

 i. allowing the owner more time; 

 ii. levying a daily fine against the owner until suitable remedial efforts are commenced or 
completed;  

 iii. requesting that the City take action to remedy the situation while making the owner 
accountable for all costs incurred by such action; or 

 iv. requesting the City exercise its eminent domain powers due to the significance of the 
property or structure in question and the urgency alleviating the conditions that caused the 
property or structure to come within the provisions of this section. 

The decision to accept and act upon the GHPC’s recommendation shall be at the sole discretion 
of City Council. 

(D) The City of Galena shall have the right to place a lien upon any property that has been the 
subject of a fine or City funded remedial action for the total amount of such fine or remedial 
action plus costs. 

§ 151.99 PENALTY. 

Any person who undertakes or causes an alteration, construction, demolition or removal of any 
property within the Galena Historic District without a Certificate of Appropriateness shall be 
subject to a fine of not less than $50 or more than $500 upon conviction thereof. Every day such 
violation shall continue to exist shall constitute a separate violation. 

Any person guilty of a violation of Section 151.40 shall be punished by a fine of $500. 

Any person guilty of a violation of Section 151.50 shall be punished by a fine of not less than 
$50 per day or more than $500 per day plus all costs absorbed by the City to rectify the violation.  
The City shall have the authority to place a lien on the applicable property for all fines and costs 
ordered. 

Page 63 of 73



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
FROM:  Janelle Keeffer, Facilities Manager  
DATE:  December 10, 2015 
RE:  Sign Sponsorship for Old Cemetery Park 

 
This fall, the city extended the opportunity to sponsor light poles in Old Cemetery Park. All 
five light poles were quickly adopted within one week by members of our community. An 
additional family requested the opportunity to use memorial money to also enhance the 
park, which is sentimental to their family. 
 
We would like to propose installing park signage—similar to the stone and metal signage 
currently at Recreation and Gateway Parks—for Old Cemetery Park.  

 
Opportunity: Signage for Old Cemetery Park 
• Signage would consistently identify and brand city parks, aiding in wayfinding 
• Sponsorship includes: installing stone base, custom metal work, lettering and graphics for 

sign, bronze memorial plaque, and assembly and installation of all components 
• Location: Facing Dodge Street, between the gazebo and basketball court 
 
Total cost of project: $2,750 
 

 
 
The family is interested in this project and would like to make a donation to pay for the 
entire cost of materials and installation if approved by City Council.  
 
I am glad to answer any questions you may have. Thank you. 

Page 64 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 11/24/2015 - 12/31/2015 Dec 10, 2015  02:11PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

604 MCDONALD SUPPLY DUBUQUE (120212)
S010329958. 1 Invoice CLOTHING 11/10/2015 56.30 01.41.471.09

Total 604 MCDONALD SUPPLY DUBUQUE (120212): 56.30

ALBAUGH, ROBERT CRAIG (1084)
120115 1 Invoice RETIREMENT HEALTH B 12/01/2015 102.00 58.54.511.00

Total ALBAUGH, ROBERT CRAIG (1084): 102.00

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
120115 1 Invoice PHONE 12/01/2015 328.02 01.21.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 328.02

BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854)
0165593 1 Invoice PLOW BLADES MISC. 12/01/2015 1,108.74 01.41.613.12

Total BONNELL INDUSTRIES INC. (854): 1,108.74

CARGILL, INC. (119097)
2902565578 1 Invoice SALT 11/25/2015 5,165.81 01.41.614.07

Total CARGILL, INC. (119097): 5,165.81

COMELEC SERVICES INC. (244)
0041703 1 Invoice NEW PORTABLE RADIO 11/18/2015 750.00 01.21.914.00
0441860 1 Invoice RADIO REPAIRS 11/24/2015 122.00 22.22.613.00

Total COMELEC SERVICES INC. (244): 872.00

COMMUNITY FUNDING & PLANNING SERV. (119937)
120415 1 Invoice ADMINISTRATION 12/04/2015 3,300.00 52.43.850.05

Total COMMUNITY FUNDING & PLANNING SERV. (119937): 3,300.00

CONMAT, INC. (1187)
99731 1 Invoice CHIPS 11/18/2015 738.08 15.41.614.01

Total CONMAT, INC. (1187): 738.08

DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1)
111715 1 Invoice COPIES MADE 11/17/2015 165.82 01.13.579.00

Total DIXON, R. K.  CO. (1): 165.82

DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339)
968953 1 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 12/08/2015 385.00 01.13.511.06

Total DOIG, KATHLEEN (119339): 385.00

DUHACK (LEHN) & SONS, INC. (119578)
1015 1 Invoice BUILDING IMPROVEMEN 12/06/2015 5,095.00 22.22.844.04

Page 65 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 11/24/2015 - 12/31/2015 Dec 10, 2015  02:11PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total DUHACK (LEHN) & SONS, INC. (119578): 5,095.00

FULL SOURCE (120193)
FS2470801- 2 Adjustmen PARADE CROWD CONTR 10/14/2015 163.45- 01.41.652.00

Total FULL SOURCE (120193): 163.45-

G & K SERVICES (532)
112515 1 Invoice UNIFORM SERVICES 11/25/2015 537.98 01.41.579.02

Total G & K SERVICES (532): 537.98

GALENA CHRYSLER (82)
60848 1 Invoice SQUAD 1 MAINTENANCE 08/31/2015 166.65 01.21.513.06
81688 1 Invoice SQUAD 1 MAINTENANCE 11/13/2015 382.88 01.21.513.06

Total GALENA CHRYSLER (82): 549.53

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
00046106 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE 11/20/2015 57.95 01.16.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 57.95

GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84)
120115 1 Invoice FINANCE-LAUNDRY SER 12/01/2015 8.00 01.13.654.00
120115 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT 12/01/2015 25.00 22.22.651.00
120115 3 Invoice POLICE DEPARTMENT 12/01/2015 30.00 22.22.651.00
120115 4 Invoice TURNER HALL-RUG SER 12/01/2015 27.00 58.54.654.01

Total GALENA LAUN. & LINEN INC. (84): 90.00

GALENA LUMBER CO. (85)
113015 1 Invoice STORAGE SHED SUPPLI 11/30/2015 9,691.81 22.22.840.05
120115 1 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 27.35 01.21.651.00
120115 2 Invoice SIDEWALK 12/01/2015 15.90 01.41.514.08
120115 3 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 12/01/2015 79.96 01.41.614.04
120115 4 Invoice PLAYGROUND 12/01/2015 450.50 17.52.820.06

Total GALENA LUMBER CO. (85): 10,265.52

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
120115 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 35.99- 01.13.511.02
120115 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 4.31 01.13.654.00
120115 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 5.91 01.41.514.11
120115 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 2.84 01.41.614.04
120115 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 87.64 01.41.652.00
120115 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 57.79 01.41.653.00
120115 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 213.52 17.52.652.00
120115 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 30.58 22.22.611.00
120115 9 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 14.71 22.22.655.00
120115 10 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 135.18 22.22.820.00
120115 11 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 159.68 22.22.929.00
120115 12 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 12/01/2015 51.99 58.54.654.01

Page 66 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 11/24/2015 - 12/31/2015 Dec 10, 2015  02:11PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 728.16

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
70729 1 Invoice WEBSITE HOSTING FEE 11/01/2015 85.00 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 85.00

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWI005728 1 Invoice CARS TOWED FOR TRAI 10/19/2015 151.00 22.22.652.00
GWI005861 1 Invoice 2011 INTERNATIONAL D 11/11/2015 371.34 01.41.613.06
GWI005973 1 Invoice 07 STERLING DUMP 11/30/2015 49.53 01.41.613.05

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 571.87

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
111515 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 11/15/2015 240.00 01.13.511.07
111515 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  11/15/2015 225.00 01.13.511.08
120115 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 12/01/2015 240.00 01.13.511.07
120115 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  12/01/2015 225.00 01.13.511.08

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 930.00

HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD. (119090)
E803303 1 Invoice METERS 11/18/2015 2,520.00 51.42.831.00

Total HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD. (119090): 2,520.00

HOGUE, CHRISTINA (120209)
120415 1 Invoice CREDIT BALANCE REFU 12/04/2015 32.78 98.115.0

Total HOGUE, CHRISTINA (120209): 32.78

HUNTINGTON, LORI (120)
120915 1 Invoice CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 12/09/2015 50.41 01.21.471.15

Total HUNTINGTON, LORI (120): 50.41

IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967)
T1614671 1 Invoice IN-SQUAD COMPUTER C 11/16/2015 232.60 01.21.542.00

Total IL DEPARTMENT OF CMS (CRF) (118967): 232.60

ILLINOIS STATE BANK & TRUST (15)
120715 1 Invoice FINAL WINERY LOT LOA 12/07/2015 1,914.92 60.01.710.08
120716 1 Invoice FINAL PHASE 7 LOAN PA 12/07/2015 2,414.30 60.01.710.09

Total ILLINOIS STATE BANK & TRUST (15): 4,329.22

INTERGRAPH CORPORATION SGI DIVISION (533)
1-118652566 1 Invoice GIS LICENSE 12/03/2015 552.00 01.45.532.00

Total INTERGRAPH CORPORATION SGI DIVISION (533): 552.00

Page 67 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 11/24/2015 - 12/31/2015 Dec 10, 2015  02:11PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

JDWI (235)
40608 1 Invoice SR. VAN TRANSPORTATI 11/30/2015 833.00 01.13.542.00

Total JDWI (235): 833.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
120115 1 Invoice ELECTRIC (ST. LIGHTS) 12/01/2015 4,989.49 15.41.572.00
120115 2 Invoice CITY HALL/ELECTRIC 12/01/2015 316.17 01.13.571.01
120115 3 Invoice POLICE/ELECTRIC 12/01/2015 479.43 01.21.571.01
120115 4 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 12/01/2015 126.21 12.10.571.01
120115 5 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 12/01/2015 60.43 17.52.571.01
120115 6 Invoice FLOOD/ELECTRIC 12/01/2015 293.64 20.25.576.01
120115 7 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 12/01/2015 375.24 22.22.576.01
120115 8 Invoice TURNER HALL/ELECTRIC 12/01/2015 421.06 58.54.571.01
120115 9 Invoice WELCOME SIGNS 12/01/2015 37.31 01.41.571.01
120115 10 Invoice LIFT STATION/ELECTRIC 12/01/2015 120.70 52.43.850.09

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 7,219.68

JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330)
112315 1 Invoice GIS MAP 11/23/2015 18.75 01.45.532.01

Total JO DAVIESS CTY GIS DEPT (330): 18.75

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
120115 1 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 12/01/2015 200.12 01.21.538.00
120115 2 Invoice CITY SHARE OF OFFICE 12/01/2015 100.00 22.22.538.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 300.12

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)
112415 1 Invoice BOOTS 11/24/2015 29.99 01.41.471.09

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 29.99

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9303716410 1 Invoice TOOLS 11/24/2015 246.91 01.41.653.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 246.91

LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943)
22177 1 Invoice TIRES 11/24/2015 882.96 01.41.652.01
22250 1 Invoice NEW TIRES 12/02/2015 715.29 22.22.613.00

Total LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943): 1,598.25

LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MGMT. INC (376)
1343164-201 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION PROGR 11/30/2015 62.30 01.21.652.03

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MGMT. INC (376): 62.30

LOUIE'S AGGREGATE COMPANY (1218)
3832 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 11/19/2015 63.71 01.41.614.04

Page 68 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 11/24/2015 - 12/31/2015 Dec 10, 2015  02:11PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total LOUIE'S AGGREGATE COMPANY (1218): 63.71

LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127)
120115 1 Invoice CONSTRUCTION 12/01/2015 54,518.76 52.43.850.05

3838 1 Invoice REROD 12/01/2015 44.26 01.41.614.04
3846 1 Invoice STREET REPAIRS 12/09/2015 6,516.00 41.61.860.02
3846 2 Invoice STREET REPAIRS 12/09/2015 10,000.00 41.61.860.04

Total LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127): 71,079.02

MARTIN EQUIPMENT-DUBUQUE (281)
176657 1 Invoice BACKHOE MAINTENANC 12/07/2015 149.04 01.41.613.07

Total MARTIN EQUIPMENT-DUBUQUE (281): 149.04

MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133)
133969 1 Invoice REFUSE HANDLING CON 12/01/2015 13,446.60 13.44.540.04
133969 2 Invoice RECYCLING CONTRACT 12/01/2015 4,649.40 13.44.540.04
133969 3 Invoice DUMPSTER RENT 12/01/2015 60.00 13.44.544.03
133969 4 Invoice DUMPSTER DISPOSAL F 12/01/2015 386.55 01.41.573.00

Total MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133): 18,542.55

MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135)
89083 1 Invoice BATTERIES FOR FLOOR  12/02/2015 200.48 58.54.654.01

Total MURRAY, B. L.  CO. INC. (135): 200.48

NAPA AUTO PARTS (79)
120115 1 Invoice MISC. 12/01/2015 15.98 01.41.652.00
120115 2 Invoice MISC. EQUIPMENT 12/01/2015 15.99 01.41.613.12
120115 3 Invoice MISC. VEHICLE 12/01/2015 9.90 01.41.613.12

Total NAPA AUTO PARTS (79): 41.87

NICOR (151)
120115 1 Invoice POOL-GAS 12/01/2015 88.60 59.55.571.02

Total NICOR (151): 88.60

NICOR (F) (118924)
120115 1 Invoice CITY HALL-GAS 12/01/2015 71.47 01.13.571.05
120115 2 Invoice POLICE-GAS 12/01/2015 147.12 01.21.571.05
120115 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 12/01/2015 185.97 01.41.571.05
120115 4 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT-GAS 12/01/2015 187.59 22.22.571.05
120115 5 Invoice TURNER HALL-GAS 12/01/2015 420.09 58.54.571.05

Total NICOR (F) (118924): 1,012.24

ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574)
120115 1 Invoice PEST CONTROL SERVIC 12/01/2015 85.64 01.13.511.01

Page 69 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 11/24/2015 - 12/31/2015 Dec 10, 2015  02:11PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total ORKIN PEST CONTROL (574): 85.64

PLIC - SBD GRAND ISLAND (120208)
120115 1 Invoice DENTAL INSURANCE 12/01/2015 3,274.70 01.13.451.01

Total PLIC - SBD GRAND ISLAND (120208): 3,274.70

QUILL CORP. (686)
9986497 1 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES/POLIC 11/30/2015 61.97 01.13.651.02

Total QUILL CORP. (686): 61.97

REDFEARN TREE SERVICE & NURS. (118895)
4985 1 Invoice DONATED TREES 10/27/2015 795.00 17.52.820.06

Total REDFEARN TREE SERVICE & NURS. (118895): 795.00

RUNDE AUTO GROUP (120009)
386249 1 Invoice TAILGATE HINGE 07 11/18/2015 32.27 20.25.513.00

Total RUNDE AUTO GROUP (120009): 32.27

SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890)
0442265 1 Invoice ALARM MONITORING 11/28/2015 27.00 01.13.552.00

Total SECURITY PRODUCTS OF DUBUQUE (119890): 27.00

SELCO, INC. (119585)
66416 1 Invoice TRAFFIC SIGNS 11/19/2015 220.00 01.41.652.04

Total SELCO, INC. (119585): 220.00

SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196)
503880 1 Invoice TRADE BACK MOWER 10/22/2015 8,410.00 17.52.830.01
524803 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT 11/20/2015 141.57 17.52.514.00
525755 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT 11/23/2015 158.80 17.52.514.00
533402 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT 12/08/2015 61.40 17.52.514.00

Total SLOAN IMPLEMENT (119196): 8,771.77

STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230)
120115 1 Invoice FUEL 12/01/2015 297.14 01.41.655.00

Total STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230): 297.14

STETSON BUILDING PRODUCTS (449)
1361960 1 Invoice WATER MAIN BREAK 12/07/2015 391.15 51.42.929.00

Total STETSON BUILDING PRODUCTS (449): 391.15

TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625)
103384 1 Invoice METER 11/25/2015 204.58 52.43.850.05

Page 70 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 11/24/2015 - 12/31/2015 Dec 10, 2015  02:11PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total TOP NOTCH PLUMBING, HEATING  (625): 204.58

TRI-STATE APPAREL (120154)
106138 1 Invoice RECYCLING MAGNETS 11/23/2015 516.00 13.44.554.00
106443 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/LORI 12/02/2015 64.95 01.21.471.15

Total TRI-STATE APPAREL (120154): 580.95

TRUCK COUNTRY OF IA,INC. (465)
X101343175 1 Invoice 07 STERLING DUMP 11/24/2015 123.95 01.41.613.05

Total TRUCK COUNTRY OF IA,INC. (465): 123.95

US BANK (118903)
120115 1 Invoice 2012B BOND PAYMENT 12/01/2015 30,000.00 60.01.710.11
120115 2 Invoice 2012B BOND PAYMENT 12/01/2015 2,796.25 60.01.720.11
120115 3 Invoice 2012B BOND PAYMENT 12/01/2015 30,000.00 52.43.716.01
120115 4 Invoice 2012B BOND PAYMENT 12/01/2015 2,752.50 52.43.742.01
120115 5 Invoice 2012B BOND PAYMENT 12/01/2015 27,348.75 41.99.999.04
120215 1 Invoice TREATMENT PLANT DEB 12/02/2015 255,000.00 52.43.716.00
120215 2 Invoice TREATMENT PLANT DEB 12/02/2015 154,816.25 52.43.742.00

Total US BANK (118903): 502,713.75

US BANK TRUST (421)
120315 1 Invoice DEBT SERVICE 2012A B 12/03/2015 39,267.44 60.01.710.10
120315 2 Invoice DEBT SERVICE 2012A B 12/03/2015 4,776.20 60.01.720.07
120315 3 Invoice DEBT SERVICE 2012A B 12/03/2015 34,208.46 60.52.710.17
120315 4 Invoice DEBT SERVICE 2012A B 12/03/2015 4,160.87 60.52.720.17
120315 5 Invoice DEBT SERVICE 2012A B 12/03/2015 9,154.38 60.52.711.17
120315 6 Invoice DEBT SERVICE 2012A B 12/03/2015 1,113.47 60.52.721.17
120315 7 Invoice DEBT SERVICE 2012A B 12/03/2015 147,433.63 60.01.710.09
120315 8 Invoice DEBT SERVICE 2012A B 12/03/2015 17,932.74 60.01.720.09
120315 9 Invoice DEBT SERVICE 2012A B 12/03/2015 14,936.09 59.55.710.00
120315 10 Invoice DEBT SERVICE 2012A B 12/03/2015 1,816.72 59.55.720.00

Total US BANK TRUST (421): 274,800.00

US CELLULAR (92)
120115 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/CELL PH 12/01/2015 45.20 01.41.552.00
120115 2 Invoice ADMIN/CELL PHONE 12/01/2015 43.04 01.11.552.00
120115 3 Invoice FIRE DEPT./CELL PHONE 12/01/2015 34.04 22.22.552.00
120115 4 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 12/01/2015 44.00 01.261.0
120115 5 Invoice POLICE/CELL PHONES 12/01/2015 83.99 01.21.552.01

Total US CELLULAR (92): 250.27

VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994)
112415 1 Invoice XMAS WREATHS 11/24/2015 2,663.65 01.11.929.07

6649 1 Invoice HOLIDAY DECORATIONS 12/04/2015 88.71 58.54.553.00

Total VALLEY PERENNIALS (118994): 2,752.36

Page 71 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 11/24/2015 - 12/31/2015 Dec 10, 2015  02:11PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
112815 1 Invoice PAY & DISPLAY 11/28/2015 75.06 01.21.537.00

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 75.06

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
625713 1 Invoice COPIER PAPER 11/25/2015 140.76 01.21.651.00
625713 2 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 11/25/2015 84.30 01.21.654.00

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 225.06

WEX BANK (119104)
120115 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 12/01/2015 1,128.96 01.41.655.00
120115 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 12/01/2015 227.87 17.52.655.03
120115 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 12/01/2015 1,040.37 01.21.655.00
120115 4 Invoice BUILDING-GAS 12/01/2015 66.21 01.46.655.00
120115 5 Invoice FIRE-GAS 12/01/2015 64.75 22.22.655.00

Total WEX BANK (119104): 2,528.16

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
120115 1 Invoice DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE 12/01/2015 4,500.00 58.54.820.00
120115 2 Invoice MAINTENANCE 12/01/2015 105.00 58.54.511.00
120115 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS JANITO 12/01/2015 110.00 01.41.511.01

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 4,715.00

WIETERS, ERNEST (120210)
120415 1 Invoice CREDIT BALANCE REFU 12/04/2015 4.91 98.115.0

Total WIETERS, ERNEST (120210): 4.91

WUEBBEN, TIM (119934)
120815 1 Invoice BOOTS 12/08/2015 135.99 01.21.471.15

Total WUEBBEN, TIM (119934): 135.99

Grand Totals: 943,239.53

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 4436790
Vendor number hash - split: 6471408
Total number of invoices: 82
Total number of transactions: 146

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 943,239.53 943,239.53

Page 72 of 73



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     9
Input Dates: 11/24/2015 - 12/31/2015 Dec 10, 2015  02:11PM

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Grand Totals: 943,239.53 943,239.53

Page 73 of 73


	00.00 Agenda 12.14.15
	00.0465 Minutes cc112315
	01.0466 Emergency Snow Removal
	02.0467 Oktoberfest
	03.0468 Halloween Parade
	05.0470 Heater Donation
	FROM:   Matt Oldenburg, Deputy City Engineer
	DATE:   10 December 2015
	FROM:   Matt Oldenburg, Deputy City Engineer
	DATE:   9 November 2015
	FROM:   Matt Oldenburg, Deputy City Engineer
	DATE:   9 November 2015

	06.0471 Bridge Inspections
	07.0472 Gateway Burn
	08.0449 Street Performer Ordinance
	street perform memo
	street perform with changes
	street perform clean

	09.0450 Tax Levy Ordinance
	Tax Levy 2016
	11.0431 Tax Levy

	10.0473 Deer Referendum
	deer memo
	Deer Referendum Resolution
	Referendum question suggestion from Bill Grosshans

	11.0474 Cobblestone Dedication
	Cobblestone Dedication
	121415b
	Cobblestone ordin
	Bill of Sale
	Dedic Plat

	Dedic Plat 2

	12.0475 Preservation Ordinance
	13.0476 Cemetery Park Signage
	14.0477 Warrants 12.14.15



